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MR. BROWN: Your Honor, may it please the
Court. Your Honor, Mr. Marshall Weaver and I have
been in discussions for the past couple of weeks \
regarding the State of South Carolina versus Roger
Leon Fortune. Your Honor, this is for indictment
2014-G5-45-210. Your Honor, Mr. Forﬁune has been
indicted under a five count indictment. That
indictment includes one count of trafficking crack
cocaine third or subsequent offense or 28/100 grams
trafficking cocaine, 10 to 28-grams third or

subsequent offense, possession with intent to

distribute heroine third or subsequent offense,

possession with intent to distribute marijuana first
offense, and possession with intent .to distribute
controlled substances, specifically Alprazolam, I
think Oxycodone and Xanax first offense.

Your Honor, Mr. Weaver over the course of the
weekend emailed me a list of motions that he would
like heard pretrial on this particular case and.éo
we're here to address his particular motions.

T@E COURT: All right, Mr. Wéaver.l
MR. WEAVER: Yes, Your Honor. Your Honor,
just to advise the Court, I have a total of six

motions, Your Honor, and I also would like to have a

Jackson v. Denno hearing heard in the matter. Your
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Honor, I will be starting with a motion in limine to
exclude physical presence of drugs.

THE COURT: Prior to admission? Prior to
them being admitted into e§idence, if they are
admitted? “

| MR. WEAVER: Yes, Your Honor. I want to
exclude the physical presence of the drugs in the
courtroom itself. ‘

THE COURT: You don't want the — if
they're not in evidence you don't want the jury to
see them. ‘

MR. WEAVER: That's correct, Your Honor.

© THE COURT: What do you say about that,
Mr. Solicitor? |

MR. BROWN: And Your Honor, just so I can
perfectly understand, is the request by the Defense
that they at no point in the trial are present or
only that they are not present up and until the
point where they're admitted into evidence?

MR. WEAVER: Your Honor, I would say not
present at any\point in front of the jury, Your
Honor; and the reason—for that;, Your Honor, would be
a 403 argurent. The State is going to call a
chemist, a marijuana analyst and a chemist to

testify as to the weight and quantity of the drugs.
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I just don't see the purpose for having the actual
drugs physically in the courtroom in front of the
jury because it's just gomna be more prejudicial
than probative, far more prejudicial than probative.

THE COURT: - All right, Mr. Brown.

MR. BROWN: Your Honor, we would certainly
argue against the points being made by the Defense
counsel. The position of the State is that this is
a drug case and this is an essgntial part of the
drug case proving not only the existence of the

drugs, but also the Actual or constructive

possession of said drugs; and because this is a

trafficking case, the quantity of said drugs. While
there is a prejudicigl effect of having those in
there, most of the tﬁings that the State is going to
do in trial will have a prejudicial effect. The
important thing is the probative value of what we're
offering; and in this particular case, £he Jjury
being able to lock and see the contrclled substances
as the chemist, whether it be lieutenant with the
sheriff's department testifying about marijuana, or
Joseph Powell who is Sumter County Sheriff's
Department testifying about the crack, the powder,
marijuana, the heroine, or the pills. For them to

be able to see that, that will help them understand
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the quantities that they're dealing with in this
particular case and this being a trafficking case.

I think that would ke highly relevant to helping the
Jjury which in this case -——

THE COURT: Mr. Weaver, do you have any
case authority that the jury should not be allowed
to view evidence?

MR. WEAVER: No, Your Honor, I do not have
any case authority on that; however, I do rely on
Rule 403. And once again, Your Honor, in the
State's argument I didn't hear any probative value
whatsoever. He did not mention one — he didn't
mention probative value. He mentioned the word
probative value, the words probative value, but he
didn't say how. Having the physical presence of
drugs in the gourtroom'when you have individuals who
are going to testify as to the weight and as to the
quantity, they're gonna testify that they did meet
the statutory requirement for the trafficking
offenses. There's simply no reason to have the
drugs here except for the shock and awe of the Jury.

THE COURT: All right.’ Do you have
written copies of the motions for the Court?

MR. WEAVER: Yes, Your Honor, I do. May T

approach, Your Honor.
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THE COURT: Yes, sir. You know, the thing
about motions in limine, you know, I come, I sit
here, I know nothing about this case and have no
idea about what evidence will be offered in a case
and I'm asked to exclude evidence from the case and
exclude it from the jury without knowing anything
about the case. I do not favor motions in limine in
general because of that precise reason. In order
for the Court to be in a position to determine
whether something is more prejudicial than

probative, I have to cbserve it in action in order

| for me to make an advance call prior to the trial

that this will be unfair to the defendant, is not
something I'm willing to do. Typically, once
something is admitted into evidence the purpose of
admitting it into evidence is for the jury's use and
benefit as the jury is evaluating the case. And
certainly, when the jury goes back to the jury, the
jury takes — we take to the jury room all the
evidence in the case. If it's admi@ted into
evidence, then it's submitted to thé jury. That's
the meaning of admitting something into evidence. I
deny the motion as a motion in limine. If during
the course of the trial it appears that anything is
occurring that prejudices the right to the ju— of
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the defendant, it can be brought to the attention of
the Court at that time; but as a motion in limine I
deny the motion.

MR. WEAVER: Thank you, Your Honor. Your
Honor, my next motion is a &©tion to keep the
State's offer open.

THE COURT: All right, and what is that
offer? .

MR. WEAVER: The offer itself, Your Honor,
was an offer of, offer to negotiate 15 year sentence
reducing the tfaffic and cocaine base 28 to lOO
grams third offense down to 28 to 100 grams second
offense, reducing the cocaine from 10 to 28—grams
third offense down to 10 to 28-grams second offense.
And that's the full extent of the offer, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right, Mr. Brown.

MR. BROWN: Your Honor, as pertains to
that particular motion we, the State's position
would be —

THE COURT: As it pertains to confirming,
that that is — we haven't heard the argument or the
motion, but as it pertains to what the offer is.

MR. BROWN: Yes, Your Honor, I apologize.
That was the offer and that was made during prior to

last term of court, about a month prior with the
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indications that when Judge Ccthran left the bench
from last term of court the offer would go with him
so that's the basis of that.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. WEAVER: Your Honor.

THE COURT: Yes, sir.

MR. WEAVER: The issue that I have with
this offer and the fact that — the reason I'm
asking for the extension, if Your Honor would beg my
indulgence for just a moment. May I approach, Your

Honor .

is concerned what is the defendant facing? How much

v time is he facing?

MR. BROWN: 25 to 30 years on each one of‘
the trafficking cases. I think 0 to 15 on the PWID,
actually maybe more on heroine. One second, Your
Honor .

THE COURT: Is that a minimum of 257

MR. BROWN: Mandatory minimum 25 years,
Your Honor.

" THE COURT: Mandatory minimum of 25 years,
maximm 30 years for the charge of what?

MR. BROWN: Of trafficking crack cocaine

28 to 100 grams third or subsequent offense, 25 to

THE QOURT: Yes, sir. As far as this case | |
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30 years on trafficking 10 to 28-grams third or
subsequent offense. He is aléo facing a 10 to 30
year sentence on PWID heroine case, also a third or
subsequent offense. The marijuana is a possession
with intent to distribute first offense. That is a
five year sentence that he's facing. And the
poééession intent to distribute controlled
substance,, if I remember correctly that is up to 15
year sentence.

THE COURT: And what was the plea offer?

MR. BROWN: 1I'd offered him a negotiated
15 year plea offer to two trafficking, would have
been brought down to second offense to be able to
open ﬁp a window for that.

THE COURT: And those plea offgrs were
rejected?

MR. BROWN: ?es, Your Honor.

THE COURT: And at this moment in time is
there a plea offer?

MR. BROWN: Your Honor, I think that's the
next\motion to be heard. I did tell him that I
would put a negotiated 20 on the table; but once I
start getting into Jackson v. Denno and suppression
hearings, I try 90 percent of the case, I'm not
going to keep it out there after I EFY actually my

10
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case.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. WEAVER: May I approach, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Let me just ask the defendant,
I mean — well, first Mr. Weaver, is that correct
what the defendant is facing and what the plea
offers are and have been?

MR. WEAVER: Your Honor, that is correct;
however, we argue that the plea offer was never
officially closed and ——

THE COURT: Ckay, I understand.

\R. WEAVER: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: But Mr. Fortune, I'm going to
ask you a couple of questions right now.

If you will swear him please.

You can stand right there.
WHEREUPON,

.ROGER FORTUNE,
Was duly sworn by the Clerk of Court.
~THE COURT: Mr. Fortune, you understand

that the, what the solicitor says at least, and that
is that with the charges that you have of
trafficking third or subsequent coffenses you're
facing a mandatory minimum of 25 years in prison on

various charges? You understand that?

11

11
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THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: And according to the Solicitor
you are un—— you have been unwilling or you were
unwilling to plead to the plea offer of a negotiated
sentence of 15 years; is that ’right? B

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: And he says that after court
was over with Judge Cothran his most recent plea
offer is that, is for you to plead to 20 years; is
that your understanding? '

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: And you rejected that as well?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: All right. Very good, /thank
you.

You may proceed, Mr. Weaver.

MR. WEAVER: May I approach, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Yes, sir. ,

(Docurents tendered to the Court.)

MR. WEAVER: Your Honor, there's a video
in this éase, and this is the main issue behind me
reques't':ing that the plea offer remain open. There's
video in this case which depicts my client in the | v
back of a patrol car discussing the drugs that were
found when he was arrested on May 1lst. This plea

12
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offer closed on September the 18th. On Septeamber
the 17th, the day before the plea offer closed, I
came up here and met with Mr. Fortune and met with
Tyler Brown and with Officer Scott Seth and viewed
the DVD, well, viewed the video with my client. I
never received a copy of the video itself until the
offer had already been closed. If the Court will
notice, I handed the Court a memorandum issued by
Chief Justice Toal on March 1lst, 2004. This \

mamorandum states that I believe it is unethical to\

premise a plea agreement on defendant relinquishing

_the right to discovery in criminal cases. The

purpose of this memorandum, Your Honor, is this: It
is to protect defense attorneys. And the reason to
protect defense attorneys is because the prosecutor
cannot wait until the very last moment, a day before
the plea offer expires, and give you discovery which
is so material to the case.- This is the reason I'm
requesting that the motion remdin open, Your Honor.

THE COURT: What is it that you want to
remain open?

MR. WEAVER: The plea offer which is dated
September 3rd, 2014.

THE COURT: And you want it to remain open

until when?

13

13



14

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18.

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

MR. WEAVER: I will leave that in
discretion of the Court, Your Honor. My client of
course, if he were to enter a plea he would have to
get family here and things of that nature. And Your
Honor, just to make the Court aware, I am not one
hundred percent convinced that my client will plead;
however, I felt that it was necessafy to make the
motion in case my client does decide he wants to
plead.

THE COURT: All right, Mr. Brown.

MR. BROWN: Your Honor, if I can before I
start getting direct on case law, I'd also like to
begin by laying a little background of this case a
little bit better on that. Candidly, before
Septemboer 17th the incident report didn't indicate
to me that there x)vas a video; but Mr. Weaver brought
to my attention that it existed because candidly, he
toock better notice at prelim than I did, where it
was outlined that the video would provide what his
client was doing in the back of the car and things
of that nature. I believe Officer Seth Scott is
present here today. He testified to it at prelim.
When that plea offer was made it was made 15 to 20
days before, before the expiration of it. No point

prior to that did Mr. Weaver raise to my attention .

14
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that he had a video that he wanted to see before he
meke a competent acceptance or refusal to the plea
offer. As soon as he brought it to my attention I
had them bring the video over. I let him and his
client sit in our jury room about two hours watching
that video and then he also took off a spot on the
van coming over from the jail the next day, sat
another two hours. The plea offer'd been up there
sometime. It's important to note that that is not
the State's only evidence. There's also a full

confession by Mr. Fortune where he admitted to

stealing drugs cut of Marion County from a guy named |

Jordan to bring them down here and intending to sell
them. You know, this is —

THE COURT: I missed the last thing you
said.

MR. BROWN: He's given a full confession,
a written confession that we'll get to in the
Jackson v. Denno hearing in a minute where he
admitted that he stole the drugs along with his
co—defendant and a third party; and they, the two of
them would bring them down to Williamsburg County to
sell them; You know, he had — he was going to
accept the 15 year plea offer. There was more than

enough evidence out there for him to have done that,

15

15
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and at this point I think we're dealing more buyers
remorse than any other issue. On the 18th when they
left having rejected a plea offer, I asked Mr.
Weaver if he wanted to put it on the record that he
would reject it. Mr. Weaver indicated that wouldn't
e necessary. He also indicated that he understood
the plea offer was coming off, and at no point at
that point did he give me any indication that he had
any trouble with what was going on. That plea offer
was out in plenty of time.

h I would point ocut to the Court that case law
was clear that defendant does not have a
constitutional right to a plea offer. That's State
v. Chisholm and State v. Beckham. I would also
point out that contractual principles and each party
shall receive benefit of the bargain, also a guilty
plea. That's Thrift versus State. Based on basic
contractual principals I'm allowed to withdraw the
plea offer prior to acceptance. And at this
particular point in time that offer had been out
there sometime. We've been jerked around for some
gocd amount of time, and we've been getting ready
for trial now. It was his decision fo reject the
pleé offer and the State is ready to proceed at
trial.

16
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THE: COURT: Mr. Weaver.

MR. WEAVER: Your Honor, the State argued
that client has no right to plea offer. To be
candid, Your Honor, it would put me in a better
option state didn't offer one, gave me all the
discovery and set a trial date. But once you offer,
once you made the plea offer, you put a deadline on
the plea offer, now you have to give me all the
discovery and you have to give me the opportunity to
review the discovery so I can sit with my client and

tell him if he has a defense. To hold evidence —

my initial motion for discovery was filed, Your

Honor, on May Sth. To hold this video until
September 17th with the plea offer expiring on
Septerﬁber 18th is wrong and unethical, Your Honor.

THE CCOURT: Well, at this point in time —
and we're at, what's today's date? We're way over
into October 13th so this discovery, has discovery
been provided? Is it complete at this moment in
time?

) MR. WEAVER: The discovery was completed,
Your Honor, on September 17th when I viewed it and
then the documents I just sent up to the Court, show
that the actual video was mailed to my office and is
post—dated September 9th which is after the plea

17

17
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offer expired.

THE COURT: All right, and assuming all of

that is correct and now we're into October, and
the — and assuming that the State still has an
offer or they're still bound by and bound by the
offer beyond the term they said it should expire,
does your client accept the offer, does he want to
accept the offer, or what are you — or is it your
contention that we should proceed with the trial,
the motions and everything, and whenever he says he
accepts them he accepts, if he ever accepts?

MR. WEAVER: No, Your Honor, that is not
my contention.

THE COURT: So that's why, therefore I ask
you, well, the offer should ke left open until when,
until, I mean, does he want to take the plea or not
or?

MR. WEAVER: Your Honor, my answer to that
question is if you give 21 days to accept or deny a
plea offer, then you should have all material
evidence turned over to you that can be turned over
to you that the State has in its possession. This )
is, this was a camera inside the patrol car. This
couldn't have been that hard to get their hands on,

Your Honor. If you have that evidence, then once

18
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that evidence is éubndtted, that's when that clock
should start running. You can't run the clock and

A

hold evidence till the last minute and then give you
evidence bgsause it pﬁts us, it puts the defense
attorney in a situation where the client has -a right
to PCR the defense attorney, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right, I understand your,
everything you said and I understand everything the
State has said. I just need to know where we are.
We're wasting time. Does he want to plead guilty?
If he wants to plead guilty to the 15 years the
State, will the State accept it. If he wants to
continue trying to see if he wins some motions and
then still hold this plea open, what is it that,
what is that he's, that y'all are trying to
accarplish here this morning, if anything?

MR. WEAVER: Your Honor, I would have to
discuss with my client to see if he would be open to
taking the plea agreement.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. WEAVER: In prior to discussions, Your
Honor, in prior discussions my client did indicate
to me that he would prefe; if he could plead
straight u? éo, instead of a negotiated plea.- That
would be the only change to want to be ——

19

19
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THE COURT: To plead straight up to the 25
year mandatory minimum or? |

MR. WEAVER: No, Your Honor, straight up
to the trafficking second as opposed to trafficking
third. The plea agreement reduced the trafficking
thirds .down to trafficking seconds and was for
negotiated 15.

THE COURT: What's the — trafficking
second carries what?

MR. WEAVER: Trafficking second carries 5
to —

THE COURT: 5 to 30.

MR. WEAVER: 5 to 30, Your Honor. That
would be trafficking second for the cocaine.
Trafficking second for the crack would be 5 to 30 as
well because that was 10 to 28—grams that he had in
his possession.

THE COURT: Trafficking in 'crack is less
than distribution?

MR. BROWN: Actually, Your Honor, Jjust to
correct that, it would be 7 to 30 because he is
facing 28 to 100 grams on crack cocaine.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. WEAVER: And the heroine as well, Your

Honor.

20
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MR. BROWN: For the record there was never
a discussion about bringing that down to a third,
beyond a third.

MR. WEAVER: Would also be 5 to 30, Your
Honor. _

MR. BROWN: And Your Honor, if I can just
clérify that last one. There was never discussion
about bringing hercine down below a third because we
didn't need to go beyond 15 year so that would
actually be a 10 to 30 year sentence as a third or
subsequent offense.

_THE COURT:  Well, is there any point in

y'all having further plea discussions prior to us
proceeding with these motions? Obviously it appears
that the Defense would like to have some discussions
with the State.

MR. BROWN: I was told yesterday they
weren't, and I was getting ready for trial. If he
wants to discu;; with his client exactly where he's
at on a guilty plea, he needs to do it before we do
a suppression(@earing'because at that point it's off
the table.

MR. WEAVER: If I may, Your Honor, just
clarify the conversation yesterday. The

conversation yesterday was a plea to 20 which I've

~

21
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had issue from, which I've had issue with since
September 18th when I believe the initial plea came
off the table.

THE COURT: All right. Well, I just ask
Mr. Wilson whether the probation department had
anything 'cause Ms. Barr is not here yet, right?

MR. BROWN: I'm not sure I had up here, I
know I have at least one individual back there,
Douglas Adams, ready to plea. I've been candidly
working on this a lot more this morning than
anything else, but.

THE COURT: I understand. But it appears
that you all need to confer a little bit more. He

needs to talk with his client and just have — y'all

see if anything can be resolved; and if it can be,
then fine; if it can't be, then I understand. I'll

~rule as I go. I certainly understand Mr. Weaver's

point of view and I agree with everything that's
Ieen presented on the issue of being, conditioning
any plea on foregoing the opportunity to view
discovery. Of course, I am certain as you.pointed
out that was never the intent of the State, but it
appears that things did sort of cross in that
respect so his, the deadline that he referenced,

would have put him in a compromising position

22
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because he didn't have opportunity to have a
discovery. Now whether how long that pertained
beyond that date, I don't know so I think it's all

worth you all having a discussion about it to see if

anything can be resolved; and if not, then we press

on.
MR. BROWN: Thank you, Your Honor.
MR. WEAVER: Yes, sir.
MR. BROWN: I'll let him talk with his
client.

(WHEREUPCN, a recess was taken from the
_ . proceedings.)
THE CLERK OF COURT: Place your left hand
on the Bible raise your right hand.
WHEREUPCN,
ROGER FORTUNE,

having been duly sworn by the Clerk of Court,
testified as follows:

MR. BROWN: May it please the Court, Your
Honor, before you is Mr. Roger Leon Fortune, Your
Honor, under indictment 2014-GS5-45-210. There's a
true bill indictment. He is charged with
trafficking crack cocaine 28 to 100-grams, third or
subsequent offense; trafficking cocaine, 10 to

28-grams, third or subsequent offense; possession

23
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with intent to distribute heroine, third or
subsequent offense; possession with' intent to
distribute marijuana, first offense; and possession
with intent to distribute schedule I to IV
controlled substances, third or subsequent offense.
May have only been indicted as first offense on that

last one, my apologies, Your Honor. With that being

said, he's here before you today. And of course

Your Honor is aware that we had some hearings this
morning for some pretrial motions. During the
course of that, plea negotiations I guess re-started
back up and he is now here before the Court to plead
guilty.

He'll plead guiltylto the heroine charge, the
marijuana charge, and the controlled substance
charge which specifically are pills as indicted
without recommendation or negotiation. He'll plead
guilty to the trafficking crack and trafficking
powder as indicted except for it will be second
offenses. He is represented by attorney Marshall
Weaver.

I think there is one matter of law Mr. Weaver
wanted to briefly take up with the Court clarifying
second versus third or subsequent offense. We'll be

prepared to address that, but he's — we're ready
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for a guilty plea.

THE COURT: TIs that right, Mr. Weaver?
Mr. Fortune has indicated that he wants to plead
guilty on these 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 indictments?

MR. WEAVER: Yes, Your Honor, he has.
Your Honor, I just remind the Court fhere are two
issues. One is that he's only going to be entering
this plead today, but he'll be getting sentenced on
Wednesday. And the second is the interpretation of
the trafficking statute for Mr. Fortune prior to him
entering the guilty plea.

THE COURT: All right. What's the issue
with the trafficking statute? ~
; MR. WEAVER: Your Honor, on April 26,
2004, Mr. Fortune was convicted for trafficking
first. On April — I mean, .on January 19th, 2010,
Mr. Fortune was convicted for possession of crack;
and of course, on May 1lst, 2014, Mr. Fortune was
arrested on these charges. I have explained to Mr.
Fortune the enhanceament statutes; hdwever, he would
feel more comfortable hearing that this does enhance
his trafficking to a tfafficking third from the
Court.

THE COURT: All rightj And the

enhancement statute is 44-53 —

f
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MR, WFAVER: I believe it's 470, Your
Honor.

MR. BROWN: 470.

THE COURT: 470, let me lock at that.
Title 44.

MR. WEAVER: May I approach, Your Honor.

THE QOURT: Yes, sir. I have the statute
here. Sir, it's under second or subsequent offense
defined under Section 44-53-470, it says that an
offense is considered a second or subsequent offense
for in the subparagraph three, for an offense
involving a controlled substance other than
marijuana the person has been convicted within the
previous ten years of the first violation of the
controlled substance offense other than marijuana.
For an offense involving a controlled substance
other than marijuana the offender has at any time
been convicted of a second or subsequent offense of
a controlled substance other than marijuana or any
other state or federal statute relating to
narcotics, drugs, depressants, stimulants, or
hallucinogenic drugs. If a person is sentenced to
confinement as a result of a conviction pursuant to
this article, the time ;eriod specified in this

section begins on the date of the conviction or on
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the date the person is released from confinement
imposed for the conviction, whichever is later. In
;his case the prior conviction dates, Mf. Brown,
were, prior dates were?
MR. BROWN: Yes, YOurlHonor. On
Rpril 26th, 2014, he was convicted of trafficking
crack first offense, as well as I believe it was
distribution of PWID cocaine first offense. It was
for‘a concurrent five year sentence. I also have ,
the dates he paroled out if it please the Court.
THE QOURT: He was paroled cut when?
_MR. BROWN: T spoke with Tameka Johnson,

SCDC general counsel. She provided to me on

- June 2nd, 2005, he paroled cut on that sentence.

Then on June 15th, 2006, he was revoked on that and -
then he officially maxed out on December 29th, 2006,
but I believe the controlling date would e June
2nd, 2005.

"THE COURT: So the statute says that if a
person is sentenced as a result of conviction, time
period specified for this ten years is the date the
person is released from confinement for the
conviction. The date of conviction or the date the
person released from confinement, whichever is

later. Mr. Fortune, any question in your mind that
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you've had more than at least two caseé within the
past ten years? \

THE DEFENDANT: No, sir. -I'm just —

THE: COURT: I'm just saying, okay. So
it's clear if your record is correct it's clear that
this is a second or subsequent offenses and under
the statute if you are convicted of a second or
subsequent offense, it involves anything other than
marijuana, the penalty is what's called the enhanced
penalty. The penalty is greater than it would be
for a first offense. And so the statute itself for
drug offenses for trafficking second offense of
cocaine is a minimum of 5 years, é maximm of 30
years 1f it's less than 28-grams; cocaine base 5
years, 30, and a fine of fifty thousand dollars; and
tréfficking in heroine is 7 to 25; and trafficking
in heroine second offense is a minimum of 25. Which
offense of heroine is this for him? ‘

MR. BROWN: -It would be listed as a third
offense as a distribution. Also, that should be a
10 to 30 year sentence to this plea too, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Distribution of heroine third
offense?

MR, BROWN} Yes, Your Honor, based on

prior traffic convictions they elevate each other.
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 offense, which cannot be suspended to probation

THE COURT: This says —— the chart I'm
locking at for distribution of heroine third offense
would be 15 to 30, CDR 185.

MR. BROWN: Court's indulgence. I'm
looking at the one that's sent out by the
prosecutor's association. It's listed as 10 to 30
and or $50,000 fine, but let me go to the red book
and see what it has to say. Based on the red book,
unless there's been a change in the law since 2011
that should ke a 10 year to 30 year sentence and/or
not more than $50,000 fine, this being a serious

unless all prior convictions are possession. And
I'm also locking directly at the statute. I'm
looking at the 20i4 law manual which also provides
the same 10 years to 30 years, not %Dre than $50, 000
or both.

THE COURT: Okay. 44-53-370(b) (1), person
who violates this subsection with respect to: One,
a controlled substance classified as schedule 1(b)
and (c) which is a narcotic drug LSD or LSD; and /
schedule II, which is a narcotic drug, is guilty of
felony upon conviction for a second offense. Or if

in the case of first offense violation of any

provision the offender has previously been
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convicted, must be in prison not less than 5, nor
more than 30 yearsasecond. For a third offense not
less than 10, no more than 30 years, and confined or
fined not more than $50, notwithstanding any other
provision of the law a person convicted and
sentenced pursuant to this item for first offense or
second offense may have the sentence suspended and
probation be granted. Notwithstanding any other
provision a person convicted and sentenced for a
third or subsequent offense in which all prior
offenses were for possession of controlled substance
pursuant to this subsection (c) and (c¢) may have the
sentence suspended, probation granted, if it's for
possession offense. In all other cases the sentence
must not be suspended, nor probation granted. 'In
this instance this is a third or subsequent offense

‘MR. BROWN: On the heroine charge, ves,
sir. |

THE COURT: —on the heroine charge. And
the prior offenses were not for possession, they
were for?

MR. BROWN: One was fof possession and
then — I don't think they count as two because they

were sentenced at the same time with 2004 was for a
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trafficking and a distribution. They probably only
counted one because‘they were sentenced ét the same
time. I believe that's the way it'; supposed to be
looked at, but at least one was not for possession.

THE COURT: So if all prior offenses were
for possession, then the one statute applied; but
since one is for trafficking, then it's the no
parole, no probation offense. ‘

MR. BROWN: Right, that is my

understanding, . yes, sir, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right, Mr. Weaver.

offer in way of mitigafion. I do agree with Tyler's
interpretation of the statute. That's the same
thing that I thought was ten, minimum ten.

?HE QOURT: Well, .it seems to be clear. I

- know, of course, you have to read through it to make

sure the prior offense§ are for this or that. But
if he has a prior trafficking, plus other prior
non-marijuana drug conQictions within the past ten
years, this would be a third offense and the minimum
would be as specified by the State for that offense
and for the other offenses for trafficking and
cocaine second or subsequent offensé less than 100

grams, sentence is 7 to 30; trafficking 10 to

MR, WEAVFR: Your Honor, I have nothing to |
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28—grams is 5 to 30; the heroine charge is 10 to 30.
This other drug charge, possession of schedule V,
what's that?

MR, BROWN: That was — is it 0 to 5

years?

THE COURT: One year.

MR. BROWN: That would be the pills he was
found with. |

/ .
THE COURT: Pills, one year.. Other drug

schedule 1, 2, 3 of Nytropam (ph) or analog with
intent to diétribute 0 to 5; What kind of drugs are
those?

MR. BROWN: I kelieve that's the marijuana
charge, Your Honor. That's the CDR code for
marijuana.}

THE COURT: All right. So these offenses,
these penalties as written, possible penalf%es~
except for the fines are written on these sentencing
sheets and 10 to 30 for the heroine, 7 to 30 for the
trafficking in cocaine over éé—grans, less than a

hundred; 5 to 30 for trafficking 10 to 28; 0 to 5

for the other possession with intent to distrilbute

"except for the pills which is up to one. Any

question about any of that, Mr. Fortune?

THE DEFENDANT: I just don't understand

f
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of the drug.

how can I, how can I be charged with trafficking
third and I only had one trafficking?

THE COURT: Third or subsequent drug
offense. It's not third or subsequegi trafficking
offense.

THE DEFENDANT: The trafficking third
guidelines carry 25/30, but all other third offenses
don't carry nowhere near that.

THE COURT: Well.

THE DEFENDANT: Trafficking goes by weight

and the other ones just go by dependency, the need

THE COURT: This offense is a trafjicking
offense, and you've had a previous conviction for
something other than possession, which is a previous
trafficking. All of them don't have to be
trafficking, at least as long as all of.them.were
not possession, then this one can_?e a third offense
for trafficking. That's the way the statute is
written. You know, they — the people who write the
statutes in Columbia, they write them in a certain
way for a purpose. The legislative intenthof the
statute is that a person who continues to deal in

drugs and who is dealing in drugs more than

possession, simple possession, but they're either
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dealing in distribution or trafficking. The intent
is for the penalty to be more severe and that's what
it is in this case. But understanding that to be
the case, do you want to plead quilty to these
charges?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: And are you guilty of these
éharges? .

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Now your lawyer Mr. Weaver has
done a lot of workwand done a loﬁ of — filed é lot
of pépers and made sonme arguments and have more
aréuments to go in raising defenses and various
things to try to assist you with regafd to these
charées. Do you want to give up your right to

pursue any further arguments or defenses regarding
y .

the evidence against you and plead guilty?

THE DEFENDANT: -Yes, sir.

THE COURT: And as you stand before me at
this moment you're presumed to be not guilty. We
have a jury coming in, at what tine?

MR. BROWN: 2:30.

THE COURT: 2:30. Your case is the“first
up. You have the right to have a jury trial and the

State would have to prove to each and every juror
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beyond a reasonable doubt that you're quilty;
otherwise, they'd have to find you not guilty. You
understand?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: And your lawyer, Mr. Weaver,
would have a right to cross—examine any witnesses
against you, challenge any evidence they might have
against you, present any defense you might have,
bring in any witnesses you may have, and to try to
convince the jury that you're not quilty. You
understand that?
| THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: And you want to give up your
right to a jury trial?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: And you also have the right to
remain silent and in pleading guilty you give up
that right to remain silent. You understand?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

- THE COURT: Has anyone promised you
anything to get you to plead guilty?

THE DEFENDANT: :‘No, sir.

THE COURT: And have you had enough time
to make up your mind that that's, that you want to
plead quilty? ‘
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THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: So understapding the nature of
the charges and the possible punishment, how do you
plead to these five charges?

THE DEFENDANT: Guilty.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. BROWN: May it please the Court. Your
Honor, this all arose out of May 1lst, 2014.

Officer, now Investigator Seth Scott with the
Williamsburg‘County Sheriff's Department was running
patrol in Hemingway. As he was running patrol on
Highway 41 North, right at the county line road he
observed a vehicle approach a stop sign right beside
where he was. He observed neither the passenger,
nor the drivef\wearing seat belts. He also observed
other activities including him sitting back in their
chair like they were trying to avoid visibility from
law enforcement. Based on the failure to have their
seatbelts on he made a traffic stop. What would
have normally been about a five minute stop he walks
up to the car and smells an overwhelming odor of
marijuana. He asked them specifically put in there
a smelled of green marijuana coming from inside the
vehicle. Based on this he started.talking to both

the driver and the passenger. He noticed they
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appeared incredibly nervous. He noticed that they

were shaking, that they were giving very short
answers, all the things that you would anticipate
seeing as a narcotics officer, things that might
give probable cause to be a little suspicious.

. At that point just by happenstance Chief Todd
of Hemingway Police Department driving by. I think
he was off duty, but he stopped just to check on
Sergeant Scott and make sure everything was okay.
That was around the same time Sergeant Scott was

asking the passenger who was Mr. Fortune to step out

of the vehicle. Officer Scott, of course, as Your

Honor is aware is a canine officer or has a canine
officer with him. He was going to do a free air
sniff based on his smelling of marijuana and all the
other extenuating circumsﬁances. He noticed around f
that time he had the two individuals step out of the
car. He talked with one who gave one story about
where they were headed and what was going on. And
then when he went over to talk to Mr. Fortﬁne he
noticed Mr. Fortune repeatedly reaching toward his
back waistband area. This was also noticed by Chief
Todd so they began to terry frisk him and felt a
digital scale, what was found to be a digital scale
in his left front pocket, and then found a pill
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bottle in his waistband, the back of his waistband.
Rased on this, based on everything they had seen, at
that point law enforcement began to search the
vehicle. Tucked underneath the passenger seat was a
black in color bag. Inside of it was what they
field estimated to be about 3 pounds of marijuana,
then large quantities of crack, powder cocaine, what
they believed to be heroine, as well as of course, a
pill bottle that was found that had a large quantity
of controlled substances. They, of course, seized
all this. And during the process of waiting for
them t/o inventory everything they put both the
passenger and drivers, Roger Fortune along with his
codefendant Nicholas Turner, into the back seat of
Officer Larry King of the Hemingway Police
Department's car. Unbeknownst to Mr. f‘ortune and
Mr. Turner the in-car camera was turned on, and he
actually turned it to be facing two individuals.
This is the video that Was mentioned earlier. What
was noteworthy in there was you saw Mr. Fortune
candidly begging Mr. Turner to take the fall for
this, to take the rap, stating you go ahead and

.claim all the drugs and I will come back and then

hire you a good lawyer, I'll go and get out;

otherwise, I'm going to fed, I'm gonna, I'm lock out

-
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for you, T won't let you go to jail, essentially
trying to get Mr. Turner who has no criminal history
to take the rep for all of this. Mr. Turner, of
course, wasn't really having any of that and never
did claim —

THE COURT: What was he saying?

MR. BROWN: Mr. Turner remained quiet
through most of it and then finally Roger Fortune
made some kind of comment along the lines of, you
knowf this is what I did with so and so, and \
Nicholas Turner said, yeah, that puts you in prison

Tight now. Tt was comical but for the fact that

what you realize who you're dealihg with in this
case. Eventu;lly they arrested him; they took him
into the County. Roger Fortune after being
mirandized, did give a statement where he indicated
that he, along with Nicholas Turner, and then one
other person who was ultimately not charged in this,
had gone to a dealer's house in the Marion County
area. They extracted him with a card game. They
went in, stole these drugs, were bringing them down
with intent to sell them. They were planning on
selling these drugs as one big buy as I believe how
the statement indicates so they can make a big pay

day essentially. As Your Honor is I'm sure well
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aware, thesevdrugs were sent off for testing off to
Louis Timmons with the Williamsburg County Sheriff's
Department, tested the marijuana. It came out to be
ultimately 1.1 pounds of marijuana. The — all
other controlled substances were sent toISunter
County Sheriff's Department. We have an agreement
with them now where Officer Joe Powell who used to
work’with SLED, now works with the Sheriff's
Department in Sumter, does all of our testing for
us. He's a great chemist. I've dealt with him
plenty of times as prosecution over in Sumter County
cases. He tested all the controlled substances.
There were, just to go and give the Court a full
couﬁt; 24-and—a-half oxycodone pills in a container;
157-and-a-half Xanax pills. There were eight
Alprazalams, which is of course, I believe is a
generic version of Xanax. And then there were eight
more Clonazepam. As it pertains to the heroine
there was 3.43-grams. Th%s was in, I believe, 180
different individual packets. And that originally
was charged as trafficking. I think that was lot of
field weight and a lot of packaging weight but it
tested to 3.43—grams. In powder cocaine it tested
positive, and it came out to 23.84-grams of powder

cocaine. And then in crack cocaine, it tested
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positive crack cocaine. It came back as 70.19-grams
of crack cocaine. So based on this he was indicted
for charges he's before you today on, and that is
the reason the State's not making any further
recommendations.

THE COURT: All right. Do you dgspute any
of the evidence the §tate has against you or what
the Solicitor said, Mr. Fortune?

THE DEFENDANT: No, sir.

THE COURT: All right. I will accept the
quilty plea.

MR. BROWN: Yes, _S_%E'_A Your Honor. Your

Honor, he does have a criminal history. Do you want
to deal with that when we do sentencing?

THE COURT: We can do all of that when we
do the sentencing. Anything further for today then,
Mr. Weaver?

MR. WEAVER: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: 1I'll accept the quilty plea
and we'll set the sentencing for Wednesday morning.

MR. BROWN: Thank you, Your Honor.

MR. WEAVER: Thank you, Your Honor.

(Plea was adjourned and continued on October 15,
2014.)
MR. BROWN: May it please the Court, Your
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Honor, we are going back cn the record with State
versus Mr. Roger Leon Fortune, 2014—@8—45—210." Your
Honor, Monday afternoon, or Monday morning, a guilty
plea was entered by Mr. Fortune in which he pled
guilty to trafficking in cocaine base 28 to 100
grams, second offense; trafficking in powder
cocaine, 10 to 28-grams, second offense; possession
with intent to distribute heroine, third or
subsequent offense; posséssion with distribute,
possession with intent to distribute marijuana,
first offense; and possession with intent to
distribute controlled substance, first offense. At
the request of Defense and consent by the State we
withheld sentencing until today so he'd have
épportunity to get his family here. We're here
today to go back on record with sentencing.

THE COURT: All right. Mr. Weaver.

MR. WEAVER: Your Honor, I — we'd request
the Court give his family the opportunity to come up
and stand beside Mr. Fortune.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. WEAVER: Your Honor, may it please the
Court.

THE COURT: Yes, sir.

MR. WEAVER: Marshall Weaver here today
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the sentencing, Your Honor.

1s arrest record. My client last was arrested for

representing Mr. Roger Fortune.for the purpose of
this sentenciné. Here today in his support i§ his
father and his sister. Your Honor, my client is 31
years old, has three children, was raised in
Johnsonville. He says that he does landscaping and
anything else that someone will call him to do, wash
cars, help move from one place to another, things of
that nature. I do believe that there are several

circumstances under which the Court could mitigate
The first circumstance, Your Honor, I bkelieve

trafficking in 2001. .From 2001 until 2014, the only
conv1ctlon that my client has had for dugs has been
a possession of crack, which leads me into the next
issue for mitigation, Your Honor, which is going to
be his cooperation in this case., My client was
arrested on May 1lst, Your Honor, and twenty-four
hours later on May 2nd actually wrote a confession
which I believe saved the law enforcement a lot of
hours, a lot of work that they would have had to do.
I will say this, Your ﬁcnor, inmy
comunications with him I believe that he is a very
well-mannered young man. I think he can be
rehabilitated. I think that he can be a asset to
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society. I would ask that the Court ke as lenient
as possible given the fact that from 2001 until 2014
the only drug conviction that he has had has been
for a possession, for a possession of crack. Also,
Your Honor, in this instance when he wrote this
confession he states that these drugs were stolen,
is what he states in the statement. He didn't even
know how much drugs he had under his seat, Your
Honor, and’that's. in the confession that he wrote.
He really didn't know exactly that it's going to be
this much that have him with these types of charges.
T would just ask the Court to take all these things
in consideration and just be as lenient with him as
possible, Your Honor.

THE QOURT: All right. Mr. Fortune.

THE DEFENDANT: Yes. First of all, I want
to apologize for wasting the Court's time. It's
just a hard pill to —

( THE COURT: You're not wasting our time.
You created a job. If it wasn't for you we'd ke
unemployed so you're not wasting our time.

THE DEFENDANT: I'm talking about as far
as the trial.

THE COURT: We're getting paid to ke here.

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, I'm talking about as
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far as the trial, like, it was just a hard pill for
me to swallow because the actually — the person who
actually stole the drugs, really, my role after he
stole the drugs was actually try to —— when he stole
them, and he didnft know how much it was going to
be. When he actually got back in the car, when he
saw the amount and he got scared and all, really, he
used the drugs so when he stole them, my role, he
asked me to like help him, did I know anybody that
would actually buy the drugs or samething. And it
happened Monday, the event actually took place
Monday. As far as leading up to Thursday when the

drugs actually found, I didn't see him again until
Thursday morning. When I called him to go to
Advance Auto that's when he came back. And I -
actually didn't know the drugs was still left in the
car until T called him on the cell phone once we got
stopped locking for the registration papers, and he
said, aw, man, it's still, the drugs are in the car.
That's when I realized the drugs was still in the
car. That's when I just panicked, start thinking
about all kind of things. And I actually asked Nate

Turner to claim the drugs because I knew that reason’

he was going to jail for the drugs even though he
didn't have nothing to do with it, he didn't know
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nothing about it. It was just Darryl tooken the
drugs. He wasn't in the car at the time so I didn't
want to be even charged with the drugs at the time,
and I would just ask for the Court's mercy.

THE COURT: All right. Anything else from
anyone else, Mr. Weaver?

MR. WEAVER: Your Honor, I believe the
State wants to rebut; but I will say this, Your
Honor, if I'm not mistaken, I believe that the
aggravating circumstances were supposed to be stated
prior to the mitigating circumstances and I believe
the aggravating circumstances were stated —

THE COURT: I go back and'forth until I
make my decision. /

MR. WEAVER: Yes, Your Honor. Yes, Your
Honor. Nothing else, Your Honor.”

THE COURT: I control the order who I hear
from and when.

MR. WEAVER: Yes, Your Honor. I will just
add this one thing, Your Honor. Even in the
statement that Mr. Fortune just stated, he also went
ahead and said that the codefendant who was in the

,vehicle with him didn't have anything to do with it.
He took full responsibility yet again. On every
conviction he has had so far he has pled quilty. He
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has not wasted the Court's time with a trial, and f
think that's another circumstance of mitigation as
well, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. You have folks
care? - Do they want to say samething or you want
them to say something?

MR. WEAVER: Only if they would like to,
Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Yes, sir, who are

you?
MR. FORTUNE, SR.: Excuse me?
___ _THECOURT: Whoareyow?
MR. FORTUNE, SR.: My name is Roger
Fortune.

THE COURT: Roger Fortune. You're related
to Mr. Fortune?

MR. FORTUNE, SR.: Yes, sir, I am.

THE COURT: Relationship is?

MR. FORTUNE, SR.: I'm his father.

THE COURT: You're his father. .

MR. FORTUNE, SR.: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: What would you like to tell

MR. FORTUNE, SR.: Your Honor, I stand

here and blame me. I'll accept a lot of fault. He
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didn't — I didn't raise him. I'm a disabled
veteran. I had problems when I got out, and I just
one around. I do know Roger is very intelligent,
you know. I do know with the proper guidance and
help he can, like the gentleman I guess is his
lawyer said ——

THE COURT: Mr. Weaver is-his lawyer,
hardworking lawyer.

MR. FORTUNE, SR.: Ckay. That he can be
an asset to the community. I suggest, you know,
maybe a drug progfam or something.

THE COURT: He's facing a minimum of 10
years, a maximum of 30 years on the heroine charge.
He's facing a minimum of 5 years, a maximum of 30
years on trafficking cocaine offense. He's facing a
minimm 7 years, a maximum 30 years on a second
trafficking cocaine case, based on a quantity being
28-grams or mcre. He's facing up to 5 years on cne
other charge and up to 1 year on another charge. If
all charges were run consecutive he's facing a
hundred and -- how many years in prison?

MR. BROWN: 116 by my math.

THE COURT: 116 years in prison. So he's
—— a minimum of 10 years; that's the minimum. He

won't get any whatever you're about to ask for. He
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will get at least 10 years in prison and he can get
up to maximum of 116 years in prison —

MR. FORTUNE, SR.: Well, Your Honor —-

THE COURT: —r*for all the charges, for
all these drugs. Go ahead.

MR. FORTUNE, SR.: I apologize.

THE COURT: T want you to be informed ——

MR. FORTUNE, SR.: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: -—as you say whatever you
want to say. Go ahead.

MR. FORTUNE, SR.: With all honesty,

hopefully the good Lord will spare my life for at

least ten of those years. I mean, you're saying to
me that, you know, it's almost no choice in the
matter and I understand that; but I do ask for those
mitigating circumstance that Mr. Weaver had asked -
you about. I would like to see my son not in
prison, you know, for my lifetime.

THE COURT: I understand.

THE SISTER: I .just want to say —

THE COURT: Tell us your name.

THE SISTER: Shameka Fortune.

THE COURT: Yes, ma'am.

THE SISTER: I'm his sister. We grew up

very close. He's always been real smart. But like
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my father said, my mom was single. She went through
depression all our lives so it's really just been
us, you know. It's been very hard. We all have
choices, you know, that I mean, and we make
mistakes. But for the past few years hes' been
trying to change, but it's just that every time he
always had pending cases. You know, I just moved
back from Philadelphia. I try — he came to visit
me a couple of times and had jobs up there, you
know, with construction and stuff like that; but
because of all the pending cases he could never stay
away from South Carolina. He always had to come
back. And because he had to come back he was
exposed to the same people, around the same stuff.
We don't have a lot of family here. You know, I
mean, and it's just been real hard. Like everybody
says, we all have choices, you know what I mean, and
he just got caught up with the wrong, wrong types of
crowds and things like that. He's a very religious
man. When I'm having a hard day he always me what
Bible quote to read, you know. I tell him maybe he
should try to change and do something like that, you
know, but it's hard. It's hard to be a better
person or a good person when you're around the samé

crowds, you know what I mean. And it's not his
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fault because, like I said, we don't have a lot of
family who look cut for us and we got to make it on
our own; it's always been like that. It's always,
always been like that, our whole life. That's not
an excuse but I'm just saying, he is a good person.
He has a good heart. He's been trying to change for
a long ting, but the same situation, it's just he be
there, he be there.

THE QOURT: All right. I'll move on to
the State.

MR. BROWN: May it please the Court, Your

Honor. Your Honor, it was represented to the Court

that he has not had any drug convictions, any
trafficking convictions since 2001. Your Honor may
recall that at the beginning of his guilty plea he
outlined — we had to cutline why this is a third or
subsequent offense. And Your Honor, to represent
that is, this is the first trafficking offense he's
picked up since 2001, just candidly isn't true.

He's had a long history with drugs. In 2002 he was
convicted of possession of narcotics ocut of another
state, it looks like Philadelphia, where he received
probation. In 2000 he picked up a false information
to police. 1In 2001 he picked up trafficking crack

cocaine 10 to 28—grams. He was sentenced to prison
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for five years, 25,000dollar fine. During the time
he was in prison he got out, it looks like, sometime
before April 26th, 2004, because on April 26th,
2004, he was convicted of distribution crack cocaine
first offense and trafficking crack cocaine 10 to
28-grams first offense where he received five years
concurrent time between the two of those. 1In 2006
he must have Qaroled.out because he was revoked on
parole. And in 2010 he picked up another,cocaine
charge. It was a second offense where he received
18 months in the Department of Corrections. And
that's the entirety of his criminal history but
since he got cut from that possession charge and
prior to picking up Williamsburg County charges he
also picked up charges in Marion County. I've been
told by law enforcement that there's charges in
Florence. I can't independently corroborate the
Florence charges. I can't tell the Court that he
does have pending charges in Marion County for which
he was wearing an ankle monitor at the time that
this occurred, which were all drug charges,
possession with intent to distribute cocaine third
offense, distribution of marijuana second offense,
distribution of marijuana second, distribution of
crack third, distribution of crack thifd,
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| stand by the fact that we do believe this needs to

distribution of heroine second, conspiracy to
distribute heroine, possession with intent to
distribute marijuana, and trafficking in cocaine
base 10 to 28-grams third offense. I don't know
what the status of that case is, but I think that
shows a window into who Roger Fortune is; and that
he is, candidly, one of the bigger drug dealers in
the Pee Dee region. It seems every time he gets out
of prison he's right back right where he started,
and so that's the reason that we took the position
we initially did, significant prison time. And we

be a significant prison time. I think we're echoed
by law enforcement on that. Roger fortune is just
ever since 2001 just been heavily involved in drugs
and so there comes a point in time where we have to
stop that in this community. And that's the State's
position, Your Honor. |

THE COURT: Mr. Wéaver.

MR. WEAVER: Yes, Your Honor, thank you.
We wholehearted;y disagree with what the State has
said, Your Honor. The 2004 conviction, when I said
2001 arrest, the 2004 conviction is a result of the
2001 arrest; therefore, the last time he was

actually arrested for trafficking was in 2001. The
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conviction just didn't came till 2004. Since then,
Your Honor, the only time he's been arrested for
drugs has been the possession of crack. Now Your
Honor, as the State talked about the Marion County
charges, if the Court will remember, I will say
sometime around fiﬁe months ago or so, the Court —
myself and Roger Fortune appeared before the Court
for a motion for bond reduction. Mr. Fortune ——

THE COURT: When was that again?

MR. WEAVER: It was May 15th, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. WEAVER: We appeared before the Court
on a motion for bond reduction. At that time the
Court denied Mr. Fortune's bond, and primarily
because Mr. Fortune had those chafges out of Marion
county. At that time I represented to the Court
that I did not represent Mr. Fortune on those
charges, but I did represent a co-defendant on those
charges, that those charges were trumped up charges
in my opihion and that the reason is because the
poiice had been having an investigation against the
individuals in this house for some substantial
period of time. On this particular date this
individual was having a cookout; and while he was

having a cookout that was the time that the police
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kicked the door in. Not only was Mr. Fortune
arrested, other individuals were afrested as well.
The reason.I'm_aware of the facts is because I
represented one of the Mr. Fortune's co—defendants
who was factually similar situated to Mr. Fortune,
and those charges were dismissed over a phone call.
Therefore, based on the facts Mr. Fortune has given
me regarding that incident, Your Honor, those
charges will eventually be dismissed I believe.
Also, after that bond was denied, 90 days later I

came back before Judge Cothran on another motion

because the court gave me right to come back within |
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90 days. Before Judge Cothran that same case came
up. The same facts were stated as I just stated
them to the court. Your Honor, I firmly believe
that Mr. Fortune was a visitor in that home. Mr.
Fortune was there for the cookout along with the
other codefendant that I fepresented. He was not
regisﬁered to that home. He was not the owner. He
was not on the lease to that home whatscever. And I'
don't believe there's anyth%ng that links him to the
drugs that were found in a bathroom. And I believe
some of them were found in the living room, but they
were found hidden, in hidden positions, but I don't
think there's anything that's going to link him to
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drugs in that home.

T would just ask the Court to make this
decision based off of Mr. Fortune's convictions and
not things that I believe are just, are going to be
dismissed eventually and those convictions, Your
Honor, I believe are few and far between. I’ do not
believe that Mr. Fortune's history makes him a big
drug dealer in Williamsburg County. The man gave a
full confession and he sajid he didn't even know how
much drugs was under the seat. He don't even know
what he stole. All he knew he had a whole bunch of
drugs under the seat.

THE COURT: Does he have a pending charge
for stealing?

MR. WEAVER: No, Your Honor, he does not.
And I would just ask_ the Court —

THE COURT: How were the drugs stolen?

MR. WEAVER: According to the statement,
Your Honor, the drugs were not stolen from inside
anyone's house. Apparently, when individuals deal
in high qﬁantities of drugs, they don't keep them in
the house; they keep them in the wood line behind
the house. Someone else observed this individual
going back and forth to this wood line, and they
believed that he was getting drugs’ from the wood
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line. That individual got with his group and said,
hey, I know where we can get some drugs from and
then that individual, according to Mr. Fortune,
eventually did go back and take the drugs. Those
drugs were placed underneath the car seat that

Mr. Fortune was eventually stoppe& by the police for
failure to wear a seat belt. At the time that he
was actually stopped, according to the statement and
according\ to the confession which was relied upon by
police in their investigation because they did no
further investigation, I'm aware of, after he wrote
his confession, according to that statement

Mr. Fortune didn't know how much drugs was in the

bag. All he knew is it was a lot of drugs. And
that doesn't make him the biggest drug dealer in
Wiliiamsburg County. That makes him a young man who
has not been arrested for trafficking since 2001 —-

THE COURT: We have yet to see the biggest
drug dealer in Williamsburg County. I've been
around a long time and I haven't seen him yet, he or
she, or whoever it is, —

MR. WEAVER: Probably doesn't live in
Williamsburg County, Your Honor.

THE COURT: —some mystical somebody.

MR. WEAVER: Yes, Your Honor, probably
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doesn't even live in Williamsburg County, Your
Honor. But I would just ask the Court be as lenient
as possible, Your Honor. Thank you very much.

\THE COURT: A1l right. /

Yes, sir.

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, to speak on, like,
when I went to prison my first time I went on — I
violate parole because of conditions of my living
arrangements and I got sent back because I violated,
like, three times, not on another charge. When I
wentyback i‘had,to do seven months. And-as soon as
I got out a month, like a month and seven days
latér, when I was actually arrested on possession
charge was the old charge, and I had — and that
happened 2007. Then it took three years before I
went to court in 2010. Then I went in 2010,
served — I made parole again. I made parole and I
got out. I completed the parole. Then, as soon as
I got out, as soon as I got out of jail they serve
me another charge. As soon as I got out, the day 1
got out of prison, they gave me another charge
dating back to 2009, a distribution of 2009. And
that's why I'm saying, 2009, I had — that's the
Florence County. So it was — every time I got out

of prison they bring up another charge. And then
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when they arrest me, they pin it on arrest record
like it was something new but it happened a long
time ago.

THE COURT: Well, I mean, you're cperating
in all these different places: Marion County,
Philadelphia, Florence County, Williamsburg County.
What other counties you had cases in?

THE DEFENDANT: Never had none nowhere
else, and that first one was from Connecticut. Yes,
the same time when I had caught the first actual
charge I was still in high school and that's what

force me to have to drop out of high school when I |

caught that, that charge. And all those occurred at
the same time.

THE COURT: . All right. Well, you know,
many pecple have interests in many different things.
Mr. Weaver started out by saying you're a landscaper
and what else? \

MR. WEAVER: I said he does odds and ends.

THE COURT: Landscaper and person who doés
odds and ends so we're not dealing with that person.

We're dealing with Fortune, the man whose opted to
deal in drugs. Many peocple choose to deal in many
things. Some people have an interest in cars. Same

people deal in hair. Some pecple deal in music, and
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sore people deal in drugs. And the people who
choose to deal in drugs, those are the ones who
usually end up in the setting that Mr. Fortune has
found himself in here today. That's not a — no
distinction between whether or not the person 1is a
good person or not a good person 'cause we're all
basically the same; it's just a matter of what you
choose to get involved in. And unfortunately, for
so many people who drop out of school, as you said
you have, and just found themselves in a down and
out situation and they choose to deal in drugs and
law enforcement and on the high end, you know,/risky
side of life, they found themselves in and out of
prison and in the situation that you're in. You
know, I've met a lot of Fortunes, folks, Fortunes
during my time. Most of them are fantastic people.
I'm related to some Fortunes up around Jefferson or
someplace over in that Chesterfield area of the
state. I've known many Fortunes who are great
people. But unfortunately for you, you picked up
some big cases, and the solicitor's arquing for a
minimm. We started here the other day a minimm
sentence of 20 years for that. It was 15 years,
went up to 20 years thé solicitor wants in this case

on the premise that you're one of the biggest drug
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dealers in Williamsburg County, and your track
record of being in and out involved w:':th drugs. But
what you've pled quilty to, you face a minimum of
ten years on that charge and all these other
different charges. Whoever went in the woods and
stole the drug dealer's drugs, had they stolen one
drug that'd been one thing, but they — he had an
assortment. I mean, he was a regular drug store.
He had marijuana, he had pills, he had cocaiﬁe, he
had marijuana, he had everything. And everything
was stolen and you were caught with it so that
_brings you in this situation here. 2nd just =
happens, I guess, to be in Williamsburg County. I
guess up of to leave Marioﬁ County all the time to
go someplace and you just happened to came, to have
come this way. Where was he arrested by the way?

MR. BROWN: Hemingway, Your Honor, on 41

THE COURT: Yeah, well.

MR. BROWN: It was right in the Hemingway
area. I'll find the street.

THE COURT: 41. Yeah, you jurmp on that
you'd be out of Marion County in no time, from
Gresham anyway.

My sentence to you is this, Mr. Fortune, on
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this 0 to 1 charge the sentence is 1 year; 0 to 5
charge, the sentence is 5 years. The 7 to 30
charge, which is trafficking less than at least 28

and less than a hundred grams, the sentence is 10

years and a fine of $50,000. The second trafficking

in cocaine, second offense, the sentence is 10 years
and a fine of $50,000. ‘And on the héroine charge
where there's a minimm sentence of 10 and maximm
of 30, the sentence is 11 years and a $50,000 fine.
It's a $50,000 fine on the other trafficking case as
well. These all sentences will run concurrent.

He's given credit for time served. You know, none
of us have a crystal ball as to how much time is
enough time to give someone some cpportunity to pay
their debt to society and move on either move on
going on the right or wrong direction, or wrong
direction. None of us have that crystal ?all SO
that's, you know. I think for generally decid;ng to
warehouse people for their life for drug cases
hadn't proven to serve any useful purpose to

society, so my sentence is 11 years.

* * % END OF REQUESTED TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD * * *
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16.  Ifany ground set forth in (10) has not previously been presented to any Court, State or
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i Macsholl  ueavec 3889 Hof€mevee RA Floence | SC

ii.

(b)  the proceedings at which each such attorney represented you:

i Morsnel\ W jocye— - cxrro.'\gn meat _ond

‘D\ea i

ii. M el

Aeever -

Sealencting
)

iii. -

Revised 3/2003
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19.  State clearly the relief you seek in filing this application:

Seg}g_ggg bp‘.nc:) Vnru\-ea‘ghf & New ’rr:o\\

20.  Are you now under sentence from any other court that you have not challenged?

_NI/f i

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

County of ]4[; litem s\ ﬁ@-

’

)
) VERIFICATION
)

L _Reger lewn Forkune T , being duly sworn
upon my oath, depose and say that I have subscribed to the foregoing application; that I know the
contents thereof; that it includes every ground known to me for vacating, setting aside or
correcting the conviction and sentence attacked in this application; and that the matters and
allegations therein set forth are true.

/ Notary Public /

My Commission Expires:N{ ¥/ / Jnﬂ,]f/f 2

Revised 3/2003



APPLICATION TO PROCEED WITHOUT PAYMENT
OF COSTS AND AFFIDAVIT
IN SUPPORT THEREOF

L__Reer lenn Torhane IO , hereby apply for leave to

proceed in this action without prepayment of fees or costs or security therefor. In support of my
application I declare under penalty of perjury that the following facts are true:

(1)  Iam the applicant in this action and I believe I am entitled to redress.

(2)  Because of my poverty I am unable to pay the costs of said proceeding or give

security thereof.
WM ik
Applicamt
Yot Lon. Tt I
SWORN or affirmed tg and s before me this
/ Li’-;/ J%OL j v / [b)
%a. j
y Notary Public
My Commission Expires: //‘49)1 :///.,L', 23
/
Revised 3/2003:
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) INTHE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSBURG )  FOR THE THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
Roger Leon Fortune, #301471, ; 2015-CP-45-343
"Applicant, ;
V. ; RETURN
State of South Carolina, ;
Respondent. i

The Respondent, making its Return to the application for post conviction relief (PCR)

filed July 17, 2015, would respectfully show this Court:
L

The Applicant is presently confined in the South Carolina Department of Corrections
pursuant to orders of commitment of the Williamsburg County Clerk of Court. The Applicant
was true bill indicted at the July 2014 term of the Williamsburg County Grand Jury for
trafficking crack cocaine (28-100 grams) (3" or subsequent offense); trafficking cocaine (10-28
grams) (3“or subsequent offense); possession with intent to distribute heroin (3rd or subsequent);
possession with intent to distribute marijuana; possession of schedule I \to IV controlled
substance (3 or subsequent offense). Marshall Weaver, Esquire represented Applicant. On
October 15, 2014, Applicant pled guilty as indicted before the Honorable Clifton Newman.
Judge Newman sentenced Applicant without negotiations or recommendations to five year term
of imprisonment for possession of schedﬁled I, II, or Il drugs, one year term of imprisonment
for possession of Schedule V drugs —first offense, ten year term of imprisonment for trafficking
in methamphetamine or cocaine base — 28 grams or more but less than 100 grams, eleven year

term of imprisonment for possession with intent to distribute heroin, and ten year term of

1ofS



imprisonment for trafficking in cocaine ten grams or more — second offense with all sentences
running concurrently. Applicant did not appeal his guilty plea or sentence.

Attached herewith and incorporated herein are the records of the Williamsburg County
Clerk of Court regarding the subject conviction, the Applicant's, records from the South Carolina
Department of Corrections, and the plea transcript will be sent upon receipt. The Respondent
reserves the right to amend this Return upon receipt of any relevant materials.

IL

In his current Application, the Applicant alleges that he is being held in custody

unlawfully for the following reasons:

/

1. Ineffective assistance of counsel
‘ a. Initial stop of the vehicle was not justified

b. I wrote a false statement out of hope and fear in which the police
officer used a question first Miranda warnings later tactic

c. My lawyer did not go through with the pre-trial motions we discussed.

d. The police officer made up the reason for the stop and probable cause.

e. After telling him over and over [ didn’t no (sic) about the drugs, he
told me the only way he could help is if I told him something about the
drugs, so I made up a story and told him....

Any claims not specifically enumerated in the PCR application or amendments will be
opposed by the State at an evidentiary hearing, and the State will seek summary dismissal of
vague or general claims at an evidentiary hearing. S.C. Code §17-27-50. All amendments should
be made well in advance of an evidentiary hearing by counsel of record. Rule 11, SCRCP.

\ I1I,

The Respondent asserts the Applicant’s allegation that his attorney was ineffective is

without merit. The Respondent asserts the Applicant’s attorney rendered effective assistance

well within the standard of “reasonableness within professional norms” for a defense attorney.

N

2of5
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Where ineffective assistance of counsel is alleged as a ground for rélief, the Applicant
must prove that “counsel’s conduct so undermined the proper functioning of the adversarial
process that the trial cannot be relied on as having producedja just result.” Strickland v.
\Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 686, 104 S. Ct. 2052, 2064 (1984); Butler v. State, 286 S.C. 441,
442,334 S.E.2d 813, 814 (1985).

The proper measure of performance is whether the attome); provided representation
within the range of competence required in criminal cases. The courts presume counsel
“rendered adequate assistance and made all significant decisipné in the exercise of reasonable
professional judgment.” Strickland, 466 U.S. af 690, 104 S. Ct. at 2066. The ‘Applicant‘must
overcome thié presumption in order to receive relief. See Cherry v. State, 300 S.C. 115, 118, 386
S.E.2d 624, 625 (1989). |

A two-pronged test is used in evaluating allegations of ineffective assistance of counsel.
First, the applicapt must prove counsel’s perfoﬁnance was deficient. ‘Under this prong, attorney
performance is measured by its “reasonableness L}nder prevailing professional norms.” Cherry v.

State, 300 S.C. at 117, 386 S.E.2d at 625 (quoting Strickland, 466 U.S. at 688, 104 S. Ct. at

2065). Second, counsel’s deficient performance must have prejudiced the Applicant such that

“there is a reasonable probability that, but for counsel’s unprofessional errors, the result of the
proceeding would have been different.” Cherry, 300 S.C. at 117-18, 386 S.E.2d at 625. “A
reasonable probability is a probability sufficient to undermine confidence in the outcome of
trial.” Johnson v. State, 325 S.C. 182, 186, 480 S.E.2d 733, 735 (1997) (citing Strickland v.
Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 104 S. Ct. 2052 (1984)).

The Respondent submits the Applicant cannot satisfy either requirement of the Strickland

v. Washington test. However, the allegation of ineffective assistance of counsel probably raises
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questions of fact that cannot be conclusively refuted by the record. The Respondent requests an
evidentiary hearing to fully resolve this issue. See Sharper v. State, 279 S.C. 264, 265, 305

S.E.2d 247, 248 (1983) (citing Norman v. State, 276 S.C. 278, 277 S.E.2d 707 (1981)).

IV.
Applicant must specify any claims he intends to raise at the PCR trial. Any claims not
specifically laid out in this PCR application or in amendments will be opposed by the State at an

evidentiary hearing. S.C. Code § 17-27-10 et seq; SCRCP 71.1. All claims should be made well

in advance of the PCR hearing. If Applicant has an attorney appointed, the attorney, and not the
inmate, is the only one authorized to file amendments. SCRCP Rule 11. Filings by inmates will

not be considered at the PCR hearing.

[signature to follow]

4of 5
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V.

Each and everyallegation contained within the application not hereinbefore either

VI

express:l'y admitted. qualificd or explained is hereby denied.

WHEREFORE, having made its Return, the State requests that an evidentiary hearing be

held.

OcAolper 2o, 2015.
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Respectfully submitted,

ALAN WILSON
Attorney General

JOHN W. McINTOSH
Chicf Deputy Attorney General

KAREN C. RATIGAN
Senior Assistant Deputy Attorney General

DANIEL GOURLEY
Assistant Attorney Genegaly

By: L

ATTORNEYS FOR M?@ENT
Office of the Attorney Géneral

P.O. Box 11549 ‘

Columbia, SC 29211
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )
) IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSBURG )
)
) 2015-CP-45-343
. )
ROGER FORTUNE, #301471. )
' ’ )
Applicant, )
)
Vs. ) AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE BY MAIL
)
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA, )
)
Respondent. )
)
1. [ am an employee of the Respondent in the above-captioned action.
2. Regular communication by mail exists throughout the State of South Carolina and that this
is a proper circumstance of service by mail.
3. 1 have this day served a copy of the Return in the above-captioned matter on the following

person by depositing same in the United States mail, postage prepaid:

Lance S. Boozer, Esquire
The Boozer Law Firm, LLC
807 Gervais Street, Suite 203
Columbia, SC 29201

;/Miﬁ“/ JZ/

Caroline Collins, Legal Assistant
For Respondent

- DATED this 28" day of October, 2015.
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
IN THE CIVIL COURT
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSBURG

ROGER LEON FORTUNE,

Applicant,
TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD
-VS-

15-CP-45-00343
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA, ‘

R L Wl SR g e

Respondent.

March 27, 2017
Sumter South Carolina

BEFORE:
HONORABLE D. CRAIG BROWN, Judge.

APPEARANCES:

LANCE S. BOOZER, Esquire
Attorney for the Applicant

JULIE A. COLEMAN, Asst. Attorney General
Attorney for the Respondent/State

L. COCONUT PANTSARI, R.P.R.
Circuit Court Reporter
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(fhe following proceedings are reported on
March 27, 2017.)

THE COURT: Al1 right.

MS. COLEMAN: May it please the Court.

THE COURT: Call the case, please,

Ms. Coleman.

MS. COLEMAN: This is Roger Leon Fortune
versus the State of South Caro]iné{ Docket Number
2015-CP-45-343. The applicant is presently confined in
the South Carolina Department of Correctioﬁg pursuant to
orders of commitment of the w111iaﬁsburg County Clerk of
Court.

Applicant was true bill indicted at the
July 2014 term of the.Williamsburg County Grand Jury for -
trafficking crack cocaine third or subsequent offense,
trafficking cocaine third or subsequeﬁt offense,
possession with intent to distribute heroin third or
subsequent offense, possession with intent to distribute
marijuana, and possession of Schedule I to IV controlled ’
substance third or subsequent offense.

Marshall Weaver, Esquire, represented the
applicant. On October 15, 2014, applicant pled guilty
as indicted before the Honorable Clifton Newman. Judge
Newman sentenced applicant without negotiations or

recommendations to a five-year term of imprisonment for

!
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possession of Schedule I, II, or III drugs; one-year
term of imprisonment for possession of Schedule V
drugs -- IV drugs -- sorry; ten-year term of
imprisonment for trafficking in methamphetamine or
cocaine base; an 11-year term for possession with
intent to distribute heroin; and a ten-year term of
imprisonment for trafficking cocaine ten grams or more
second offense, with all sentences concurrently.

Applicant did not appeal his guilty plea or
sentence. Applicant filed a timely application for
post conviction relief on July 17, 2015, alleging that
he was being held in custody unlawfully based on the
following allegations: Ineffective assistance of
counsel. The State filed its return on October 28,
2015; and he is present today and represented by
Mr. Lance Boozer.

THE COURT: Mr. Boozer.

MR. BOOZER: Thank you, Your Honor. If it
pleases the Court. We will go ahead and call
Mr. Fortune to the stand.

(The witness comes forward.)

ROGER FORTUNE, being

first duly sworn, testifies as follows:

CLERK: Please state your name for the record

and spell your last name.
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ROGER FORTUNE -- DIRECT -- MR. BOOZER

THE WITNESS: Roger Fortune, F-0-R-T-U-N-E.
< THE COURT: Mr.'Boozer, I don't want to try

to tell you how to do your case. But if you would, I
am reading through the trial transcript here on the
initial motions being made by Mr. Weaver as it relates
to the offers being made to where he was willing to
acpeptq if I recall correctly, 15 years. The State
offered 20. g

He rejected that at the time, and it looks
1ike he got less than any of what he was willing to take
at the time. If you will c;ver those from the outset
and then go into any issues pertaining to the
ineffective assistance.

MR. BOOZER: Certainly, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. BOOZER: '

Q Mr, Fortune, how are doing? -

A A1l right, doing fine.

Q Do you know why we are here today?\

A Yes.

Q Why is that? What have you filed to get us in

court today?
A I filed an ineffective assistance of counsel, PCR

court.
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ROGER FORTUNE -- DIRECT -- MR. BOOZER
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And let me ask you this: You understand that the
only thing that this Court can do for you -- this
Court can't reduce your sentence. This Court can't
make you parole eligible.

The only thing this Court generally can do 1is
to grant your PCR application, send your case
basically back to the Solicitor's Office; and you
face the original charges all over again in this
case. Do you understand that?

Yes, sir.

And any plea deal or whatnot that has been made,
that would come undone; and you go back and face
the origina1'charges. Do you understand that?
Yes, sir.

And you are currently serving a sentence -- what 1is
your sentence right now?

Eleven years.

Eleven years?

Yes, sir.

If you would, what were you originally charged for
in this case?

Trafficking crack cocaine, trafficking cocaine,

PWID of heroin, possession of pills, and possession

of marijuana.

And who represented you on those charges?
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ROGER FORTUNE --- DIRECT -- MR. BOOZER

A

[»]

A

Q

Mr. Weaver, Mr. Marshall Weaver.
A1l right. Now, you and I have been working under
the assumption for quite a while since I've been
representing you that there was no transcript of
your motions or your plea; is that right?
Yes, sir.
We have since been provided with that, and you and
I have looked at-that this morning?
Yesi
If you would, from your recollection can you walk
the Court through theyp]ea offers that were made up
until you ended up with what appears to be having
some pretrial motions and then finally you enter a
plea. What was the plea offer that was initially
made to you?
Originally, it started out with me trying to go up
for a bond. I think on my last day, when I did
actually go up for a bond, that's when I received
the offer. 4

Othgr than'that, I never -- well, it was 15

years, but besides that I never talked to the

“solicitor or nothing. That was the first initial

offer, like a month before trial.
In the transcript that's at page 12 where the Court

says, "You were unwilling to plead to an offer of a
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ROGER FORTUNE -- DIRECT -- MR. BOOZER
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p

negotiated sentence of 15 years," is that what you

. are talking about?

Yes, but I never --

Okay -- go ahead. I'm sorry.

I never negotiated. We never had negotiated. That

was just his initial offer.

Was 15 years?

Yes.

A1l right. And you were not willing to take that?
No, sir.

So then you go to court, and it appears y'all made

some pretrial motions. Do you recall that?

Yes.

What was the 15-year offer to? Because you pled to
trafficking second. What was that, to trafficking
second as well?

The plea offer was to drop the third offense
trafficking to second offense trafficking and 15
years for everything, 15 years for every charge.
Okay. And so you have these motions and part of
the motions that were made was your lawyer asked to
keep a plea offer open for you. Do you recall
that?

I don't reéa]} that motion.

Do you recall any sort of hearing before Judge
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ROGER FORTUNE -- DIRECT -- MR. BOOZER
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Cothran where there was a plea offer of up to 20
years?

A plea offer?

Correct. Do you recall there being a recent plea
offer that was for you to plead to/a 20-year
sentence?

Yes.

When was that?

That was the day I went up for a bond.

Okay. And that's one that you rejected?

That's the same day. The same day that I received
the 15 is the same day that he gave me the 20. He
told me if I went up for a bond and didn't get a
bond that he was going to take the 15 off the ‘
table.

- So is that, -- you had two plea offers before that

you rejected, one for 15 and .one for 207?

Yes, in the same day. f
In the same déy. Then you go -- was there any
other plea offer %n between that time and the time
you went to Eourt for your pretrial motions and
your plea?

No.

So you get to court and do you recall your Tawyer

making a motion to keep open a plea offer for you?

4
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Because it appears from the transcript that you
guys had been provided with, I guess, a video; but
that video was not disclosed to y'all until the day
before the expiration of the plea offer. Do you
recall that?

I recall the video and I recall him stating
something about telling the judge that he was just
now receiving a last piece of the five, the Rule 5.
And .he was asking the Court to hold open that plea
offer, I guess the 20 years, so that y'all could
review everything? Do you remember all that?

Yes.

So ultimately you end up entering a plea that day

with those pretrials motions. What did you end up

pleading guilty to that day?

I end up pleading guilty to everything, everything
I was charged with, an open plea.

But you didn't plead guilty to trafficking third?
No, sir.

What did you plead guilty to?

Trafficking second.

And you got what sentence as a result of that?

Ten years.

Did you get ten or 11? What was your sentence?

I got ten for the trafficking and 11 for the
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ROGER FORTUNE -- DIRECT -- MR. BOOZER R
possession with intent.

Q So you got 11 concurrent with ten?

A Yes.

Q What is your max-out date?

A I think 9/23, 2023.

Q 20237

A Yes, September.

Q So the sentence that you received at the end of
day, that was much better than those two initial
sentences -- two plea offers that you had of the 15
and the 207

A Yes.

MR. BOOZER: Your Honor, does that cover it
background wise?

THE COURT: Yes, sir. Thank you.
BY MR. BOOZER:
Q Mr. Fortune, as I indicated before, the only thing

this Court can do is start you over. You would
face -- of course, part of it would be that
trafficking third. You would face all your
original charges again.

If you go to trial, you can either, of course,
beat those charges, which would be your best case
scénario, or there is a possibility, if everything

went terribly wrong, you could be found guilty.
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Do you understand if that happened, you could
face significantly more time than what you have
left to serve on your sentence?

Yés, sir.

And we have discussed that, have we not?

Yes.

Do you still want to go forward with your PCR
knowing that?

Yes.

Mr. Fortune, who was your Tawyer? You said it was
Marshall Weaver?

Yes.

In your application you have a few allegations.
You have got one that the initial stop of the
vehicle was not justified?

Yes.

Tell the Court what you wanted your lawyer to do
with regard to that allegation.

Basically, I wanted him to, 1ike, test the grounds
of the initial stop; like, go forward with, 1like,
see what was going on; Tike, with the %nitiai stop.
Since the initial stop was never justified,
basically to check on everything that the officer
was saying.

I told him that Officer Scott was lying at the
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ROGER FORTUNE -- DIRECT -- MR. BOOZER

time, 1ike, he made up every reason even to stop
for seat belt. Everything that he wrote up, it was
a lie. I really wanted the dash-cam video so I
could prove that he was lying on the statements.
What was your lawyer's response to you asking or
inquiring about that?

At first he was -- we was waiting on the stop. But
every time we went to court, they continued it.
When we went to the magistrate court, they
continued it. Then we asked that it be moved to
general sessions court.

Then when it wéht to general sessions \court,
they pushed it back down to magistrate again. When
we went to magistrate court one more time, they
continued it. The last time they continued it
would have been for November the 4th. But by then
I already had pled October 15th, 2014,

Expiain that to me one more time. What happened by
the time you pled? A

I pled October 15th but the charge was nol-prossed
as to November 4th.

And you are talking about -- you handed me a couple
of documents. You are talking about you were
stopped for not having a seat belt on?

Yes,
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That was somethiﬁg that was nol-prossed?

Yes.

And you also had urlawful advertise, sell, or
manufacture or possess drugs. That was somethfng
that was no]-brossed?

Yes.

What is it you wanted your lawyer to do?

To go for suppression of evidence due to violation
of the Fourth Amendment. If the initial stop
wasn't justified, everything final would be fruits
of the poisonous tree.

And did he tell you that he would do any of that?
Yes.

Did he do any of that?

No, we never got to it.

You've also got an allegation that you wrote a
false statement out of hope and fear in which the
police officer used in questioning you. Is that
one of your allegations?

Yes. -

Explain to the Court what you mean by that.
Basically, when I first got arrested while we was
sitting in this holding cell or whatever, the
police officer came up and he kept asking me about

the drugs, me and my codefendant.
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ROGER FORTUNE -- DIRECT -- MR. BOOZER 15

I kept telling him that I didn't know anything
about the drugs. So we went back and forth like
that. Then after a while he was, 1ike, "Man, you
want help, don't you? You want help?" He kept
asking did f want help.

I was, iike, yeah. And I was, like, "Well, do
you know anybody that actua11y" -- I told him I
don't know nothing about the drugs. I told him if
anybody got warrants or anything 1ike that, you
give me a name. I might know somewhere where they
are, but I don't know nothing about no drugs.

He kept saying, "If you need help, you want
help, you got to tell me something about the
drugs." It %as going on back and forth Tike that.

Then I made up a story about thé drugs while me and

the officer was talking.

Then that was earlier that day. Then he came

back later on that day asking me 'the same thing.

‘He was, like, "I need you to write what you wrote

down -- write what you wrote down, the same thing
you toid me earlier.”

I said, "I ‘already told you. Why do you need
me to write it down?" He said, "If you want help,
I just need you té write it down. It's for my

benefit and the solicitor benefit." He said, "It's
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ROGER FORTUNE -- DIRECT -- MR. BOOZER 16
going to help you out."
I said okay. So I wrote -- I summarized what

. I wrote, what I wrote down, from what I told him.

After that -- well, he left out of the room when I
started writing. Then he came back and he told
me -- he came back and he asked me was I finished.

I gave him a paper, actually two papers,
because I wrote one ;nd then I wrote something
else. I was, like, "Is that good enough for you?"
He was like yeah. K

When he came back, he gave me -- as soon as he
walked in the door, he gave me a Miranda warning
paper and asked me to sign. I was like, "What's
this for?" He was 1like, "If you want help though,
just sign it. I'm an honest man. I will never lie
to you. I will help you out.”

So I just signed the paper without even

looking at anything. Then he walked out and then

within two minutes Tater, another officer came to

the door and presented me with the warrant.

Did you have any discussion with your lawyer about
that particular statement that you claim you
falsely wrote?

Yes.

What was that discussion?
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The discussion that we was going to challenge the
statement in a -- I think it's called a Jason
hearing or Jackson something, Denno Jackson, some
kind of hearing where we supposed to have doing the
pretrial motions.

Okay. Did y'all do that?
No. | |

Why not? -

i don't even know why not.
You've also got an allegation that the police
offiéer lacked probable cause for the stop. I
ihink -- have you covered "that with your initial
allegation in that the initial stop of the vehicle
was not justified when you were talking about fhe
seat belt?

Yes. Basically, the initial stop was the seat
belt, but then he challenged that he smelled
marijuana also. But the charge for me having an
unlawful, Tike, possession, it was actually
paraphernalia. It was a scale, which was actually
a phone, and that got nol-prossed too.

Along with the seat belt violation?

Yes.

How did Mr. Weaver come about representing you?

Did you hire him or was he appointed to represent
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you?
I hired him but I didn't get a chance to pay him 1in
full.
Do you know about how many times you met with
Mr. Weaver? -
Maybe -- I would say no less than five, no more
than ten.
Did you have a preliminary hearing?
Yes.
Did you feel 1ike your Tawyer did everything he was
supposed to do in that preliminary hearing or do
you have any complaints about that?
Yes. Well, I didn't really know everything that he
could have done in the preliminary hearing until I
got -- until I started reading over the laws
myself. |

I think the officer that day at the
preliminary hearing, the officer didn't bring the
file. So it really wasn't too much he could do on
that day. He asked him about his file, not
significantly but just briefly.
Did you and Mr. Weaver discuss the defenses to the
case? .
As far as the suppression of evidence and the

\hearing and the challenge of the statement?
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Correct.
Yes.
Did y'all discuss what your trial strategy would
be?
Yes.
What was the strategy?
Basically when he came to see me, we went over --
we went over the statement. We went over
everything I did during that day throughout the
plan. My plans on that that day, when I woke up
that morning, I think he started about 8:00 o'clock
and set a time when it stopping happening.
Okay. You actually pretty much began the trial
because y'all had some pretrial motions. What
caused you to enter the plea?
What caused me to enter the plea, basically after
everything was said and we took the break, they
went into -- I went into another smaller room, me
and Mr. Weaver.

Mr. Weaver asked me did I want -- if he can
get the 15 off on the table, would I take it? I
was, like, I told him I didn't want to take it. 1

told him -- I kept asking him to ask about my --

J1ike, I only had one trafficking, one prior

trafficking, and how can it be my third? I kept
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asking about that.

Then he said, "Hold up." He left out. He
left out to go back in. At the time I still was in
the room. When he came back in, he told me that he
got another offer, open pleas, did I want to take
that. ‘

Initially I told him, no, I didn't want to
take it. I still want to go to trial. He was just
showiﬁg concerning saying, "I don't want to see you
get 25 years. You are 31" --

On the third you were facing a minimum of 25 years?
Yes.

Keep going. I'm sorry.

He was saying that he didn't want to see me get 25
years. I could handle something Tower than that,
but he don't want to see me get 25 years. I was,
like, "If I do lose, I can fight it or appeal it or
whatever."

He was, Tike, he know a lot of cases that
don't ever get to that point. So after that he
was, like, "Man, it's best you go ahegd and take
the plea."” He asked me, he was, 1ike, "You trying
to go to trié] and everything."”

He told me, he you said he up here doing

everything he can, even though I didn't pay him all
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the money. I told him, "We]],\I would get you the
money, the rest of the money."

He was, 1ike, "No, the rest of the money
probably won't come,"” 1ike that, not if I get time,
which I understand everything he was saying at the
time; but I still told him I wanted to go to trial.

But it came to a point, 1ike, where I felt
like all the fight and energy that he had them in
initially from the start when he was talking about
trial wasn't there for a guilty plea.

It was, like, I just -- Tlike, lack of
confidence, 1like, it was no way. Like, if he had
to repr;sent him, he was; .but I don't think it
would have been to the best of his ability by the
way he was talking, by the way his language
changed. It was, like, he wanted me to take the
plea, no matter what.

At the plea did you have some dispute as to whether
it was actually -- you pled guilty to trafficking
second; right?

Yes.

Did you have some dispute or voice your opinion
that you didn't believe it should have beep charged
as a trafficking third?

Yes.
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Why was that?
Because the solicitor, every time he spoke, he kept
speaking about I had a prior trafficking in 2001,
and I had another trafficking. He said I had a
trafficking in 2001 and I got five years.

Then he stated I had a trafficking in 2004 and
I got five years. He was saying this was my
initial -- this was mg third offense trafficking,
which would be T1ike my third serious charge.

' I feel 1ike I only had one prior trafficking.
He was -- when you look at my record, it shows I
got arrested in 2001; but I didn't get -- go to
court until 2004. So I felt Tike the solicitor was
basing his assumption off that.

Did you have any discussions with your Tawyer about
your dispute with it being a third?

Yes.

What was his response?

He was saying that -- well, initially he was saying
that the solicitor wasn't going off that.

We covered a number of things. Is there anything
that we have not covered as far as why you pled
guilty or the allegations that are in your PCR
application?

The only other reason why I ended up pleading
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guilty because it was, like, Mr. Weaver wasn't
going to go through -- I asked him to go ahead,
"Let's just go ahead and go through with the
challenge of the statement, the suppression of
evidence." I asked him, "Can we just go aheéd and
do that instead of €a1k1ng about a plea?"

I still wanted to go to trial.’ Then he said
no. He toid me I just need to take that plea.
Therefore, that's why I ended up just saying, "Man,
forget it," and just went ahead and took the plea.

Q Okay. Mr. Fortune, that's all the questions I have

for you right now. Please anéwer\any that the

State may have for you.

A Okay.

THE COURT: Cross examipation.
MS. COLEMAN: Thank you, Your Honor,
CROSS EXAMINATION

2

BY MS. COLEMAN:

Q Good morning, Mr. Fortune. .

A Good horning.

Q Do you recall reviewing discovery with your
attorney?

A Yes.

Q And did he explain all of that to you?
A Yes.
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Do you recall at the guilty plea waiving your
constitutional rights, like your right to,a jury
trial and your right to remain silent?

Yes.,

A .
So the judge explained all of that to you, didn't
he?

Yes.

Were you aware or did you understand at the time by
pleading guilty, you were waiving your right to
challenge the underlying evidence by pleading

guilty?

Can you repeat that for me? J

Were you aware that -- when you p]éd guilty, did
you know that by pleading guilty, you were waiving
your right to challenge the evidence, 1like the
police report and the stop and everything?

I guess it's kind of in between.

Do you recall tei]ing {he judge that you were
satisfied with your attorney's services?

Yes. \

And you had no complaints against him at the time;
correct?

Not none that I stated.

Why didn't you tell him that you had complaints?

Because up until that point, till that Tast moment,
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like, the Tast 15 or 25 minutes before when we wereA
supposed to go with everything with the pretrial
motions and everything, I didn't have no
complaints.

Do you recall telling the judge that no one was
promising or threatening you to plead guilty?

Yes.

Do you recall telling the judge that you were

"guilty of this crime?

\

I recall but I told him really I was just pleading
guilty because I didn't know anything about the
drugs until the actual phone call that I made
during the stop. |

But did you have those drugs in your car during the
stop?

The drugs was in the car but not my car.

But you told him that you were in the car with the

drugs; correct?

Yes.

~ Did you say anything at the time to your attorney

about your prior convictions? You testified a
moment ago that you don't think you should have
been charged with third offense because you didn't
have two prior offenses. Did you tell your
attorney this at the guilty plea?

i
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A Yes.
Q -- instead of third. Thank you. No further
questions. “

s~ > (93] £ w N

A I was telling him, through a background check of my
record, I believe the solicitor was making a
mistake the whole time.

Q  And you pled down to second offense; correct --

1

THE COURT: Mr. Boozer. )
MR. BOOZER: Nothing further, Your Honor.
THE,QPURT: Sir, 'you may step down.
(The witness leaves fhe witness stand.)
MS. COLEMAN: The State calls Marshall Weaver.
MARSHALL WEAVER, being
first duly sworn, testifies as follows: J
7 | CLERK: Can I get you to state your name for
the record and spell your last name, please.
THE WITNESS: Marshai1 Weaver, W-EZA-V-E-R.
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MS. COLEMAN:

/

Q Good morning, Mr. Weaver.

A - Good morning. :

Q How long have you been practicing law?

A For eight years.

Q@ Do you recall whether you were appointed or

retained in this case?
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I was retained in this case on May the 9th, 2014.
How many t{mes did yéuvmeet with the applicant
before h;s guilty plea?

I met with him somewhere between -- I would say
somewhere between seven and nine times.

Did you file any Rule 5 or Brady motions?

I did. I filed Rule 5 and Brady motions on the

case, and I did receive all discovery. All

~discovery was -- I then made copies of all

discovery and all of it was turned over to

Mr. Roger Fortune.
There was an issue that they discussed on the

transcript about -- and I think they testified

today -- about a videotape that you didn't get

until closer to the day of the trial; is that

correct?

That's right. The video was the basis of the
motion for the State to keep the offer open. What
the State had done Wgs made\én offer for a
negotiated 15 years.

Then after the qffer, the day before the offer

~closed, then they presented.me with a video. 1In

the video it showed Mr. Fortune in the back seat of
a car, in the back seat of a patrol car, discussing

with the codefendant that he should take the drugs.
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He should take the charge.

Of course, I never got the video myself. It
was one that I had to drive to Kingstree and watch
with Mr. Fortune. That was the basis of my motion,
which was that Chief Justice Toal had issued a
memorandum sometime back stating that offers
should remain bpen until all discovery had been
received.

So the basis of my motion was' I hadn't
received all the discovery myself, but just having
one day to consider and actually go through that
video, it would have been impossible.

And were you successful on that motion?

Yes, I was.

So you testified that you did review the discovery
with the applicant; is that correct?

Yes, we went over everything, very in depth.

Did this videotape that they provided you, Tater on
did that change your plans to go to trial, rather
than plead gu11t¥?

No, it didn't. It created another burden. It
created another hurdle that we had to get over;
which I discussed with Mr. Fortune, another
obstacle.

But Mr. Fortune wanted to proceed forward with
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trial. So I proceeded forward. The manner 1in
which I was going to proceed, further was I made a
motion. I intended to make a motion to preclude --
yes, to suppress or redaét the video,
Q And did you get to argue that motion?
A I did not.
Q This was one of the pretrial motions that you didl
not get to because he decided to plead guilty?
A That's correct. N
MS. COLEMAN: Your Honor, may I approach the
witness?
THE COURT: Yes.
MS. COLEMAN: Thank you.
BY MS. COLEMAN:
Q I will hand you a document and ask you if you
recognize this?
A Yes, I do.
Q And what is that?
A This ;s my motion to suppress the defendant's
statement, which was filed 1in Kingstfee on
October 13, 2014,
Did this come from your file today?
Yes, it did.

Do you recall filing this motion?

> 0 r O

Yes, 1 do.
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MS. COLEMAN: I have shown a copy of this to
opposing counsel. The State moves fo enter this as
Exhibit Number 1.

THE COURT: Any objection?

MR. BOOZER: No ?bjection, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Without objection so admitted.

(Respondent's Exhibit Number 1 is received
into evidence.)

BY MS. COLEMAN:
Q Mr. Weaver, was this -- what was that motion that I

just handed you?

A That was a motion to suppress Mr. Fortune's

confession, the confession that -- when he
testified he stated he had made a statement and
that the statement had been made under duress or
coercion. That was the baéis of that motioQ.

It was my intention to proceed forward with
the Jackson v. Denno hearing and to flush out any
potential defenses that I would have to possibly
exclude his statement.

Q And why didn't you get to go forward on this motion
or the otheré?

A Mr. Fortune decided to plead guilty when the first
motion was -- actually, my second motion of the day

was granted.
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There is some discussion on the record about the
plea offer. OBvious1y, he granted your motion to
reopen the offer. If you had gone forward with the
pretrial motions, would that offer have still been
open?

No, it would not have been.

Did the applicant tell you his version of the facts
in this case?

Yes, he did.

And‘what wére those?

His version of the facts were -- his version of the
facts were that they were coming through
Johnsonville. I can't remember the name of the
highway. They reached Highway 4151. -

They made a right turn, but he was asleep 1in
the car. And when he woke up, the police officer
was tapping on his window. When I asked hinm,
“We]], how did you miss all this? Why didn't you
know the police officers were there?"

Because there was a lot of drugs in the car.

I mean, this was a tremendous amount of drugs. I
don't see how a person could sleep sitting on all
these drugs. He told me at tha? time that he was
under the influence of some pills that he had

taken, and that's why he was sleeping in the
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car.
So he admitted to you that he was in the car with
these drugs?

Yes, he did.

Did you discuss any possible defenses with him?
Yes, I did.

And what were those?

Well, the vehicle was not his vehicle. He had
been going back and forth to‘Advance Auto Parts
that day working on another vehicle. So the
defense that he and I arrived at was the defense
of, first of all, he did tell me that he didn't
know about the drugs.

We arrived at the defense of that they were
not his drugs, that he was in that vehicle going
back and forth to Advance Auto with the
codefendant, who was the driver of the vehicle.
Basically, that was going to be the basis of his
defense is that he just didn'f know that they were
underneath the seat.

So you have already discussed some of the State's
evidence against the applicant, including that
videotape. Did you think that that evidence was
strong or overwhelming?

I thought it was extremely -- I thought it was very
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strong evidence.
And did you discuss the elements of the charge with
the applicant and what the State was required to
prove?
I went through each charge and discussed all the
elements on every charge, and 1 discuésed the 3
sentencing of every charge as well.
Did he seem to understand those conversations?
He did.
Did you review his constitut%ona] rights before the
guilty plea?
I did. 5
Did he seem to understand everything?
Yes, he did. |
What wag}the State's offer that he initially pled
guilty to?
The State, following a conversation with Assistant
Solicitor Tyler Brown and Judge Newman in chambers,
I went back to Mr. Fortune and told him, "I _think
it would be in our best interest if we allowed the
State to completely withdraw the negotiation and
the recommendation and to plead straight up,"” and
he agreed to do that.

So the final plea Was not a result of the

negotiation or the recommendation. It was a result
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Your

of a straight-up plea before Judge Newman. The
only thing that changed was the trafficking third,
trafficking thirds, were reduced to trafficking
seconds to allow for a Tower sentence.
Did the applicant -- they have alleged today that
he did not have two prior trafficking charges that
could have been used to enhance his conviction to
be charged with third offense or plead to second
offense.

Did the applicant have the proper prior
convictions to enhance this charge?
Yes, he did. One moment please.
Uh-huh.

THE WITNESS: I beg the Court's indulgence,
Honor. We just got these transcripts.

THE COURT: Yes, sir.

(Pause.)
Can you repeat the question, please.
Sure. Did the applicant have the proper prior
convictions to enhance this charge to a second or
third offense?
Yes, he did. He actua]]y\had the charge of
possession of meth or cocaine base, which was a
second conviction, which was on January 19, 2010.

He also had a trafficking ice, crank, or crack
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greater than 10 grams but less than 28 grams
conviction on April 23, 2004.

In the transcript when we went before Judge
Newmén, I asked Judge Newman to actually review
that with him becéuse I kept explaining to him it
was through the drug enhancement statute, but he
wouldn't take my word fo; it.

I knew what was at staké, and I didn't want
him to feel uncomfortable entering his plea. So I
asked Judge Newman before his plea it he would
please go over the drug enhancement statute with
him so that he would understand it. Judge Newman
did oblige and did go over everything prior to him
entering the p1éa as well.
And that's all on the record, isn't it?
Yes, it is.
Whose decision was it to plead guilty?
It was his decision entirely.
And do you agree with that decision?
Yes, I did.
Do you still agree with that decision?
Yes.
Thank you. No further questions.

THE COURT: Mr. Boozer.

MR. BOOZER: Thank you, Your Honor.

~
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BY MR. BOOZER:
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Mr. Weaver, how are you doing?

Doing well. How about yourself?

Doing fine. Thank you. Were you retained in this
case?

I was.

Did y'all have any discussion or did he make any
sort of request about trying to get any sort of
dash-cam video? Do you recall?

Yes.

What was --

We got the dash-cam video.

Okay. :

That was the one we saw. That's the one -- the
video that they presented to us showed the outside
of the vehicle. Then once they put them -- it was
Tike a camera that's in the patrol car that could
be rotated from showing forward to showing
backward.

So when they apprehended them, they put them

_in the back of the patrol car. They took the same

camera that showed the stop and turned it around
and now it was showing them and recording the

inside of the vehicle.

13
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~

And do you recall how many cars arrived and which
camera that car was in, whether it was the car that

initiated the stop or whether it was just one that

‘arrived at the scene?

As I recall, it was in the vehicle that arrived at
the scene.- I don't think it was in the vehicle
that initiated the stop.

Did y'all have any discussion about getting the
dash-cam video from the vehicle that initiated the
stop?

Yes. As I stated, I can't recall which vehié]e it
was actually; but, yes; I requested everything from
the Solicitor's Office.

Do you recall if y'all actually reviewed any
dash-cam video from the vehicle that made Fhe stop?
I do believe that we did; but, however, as I

remember it, the vehicle only showed the tail end

of the stop. The camera was not activated until

. the Tights were initiated, and they were stopped

for failure to stop at a stop sign for a California
roll, is what they call it, a California
roll-through.

Where the vehicle was stopped at couldn't have
been no more than 40 feet from the stop sign that

they were just accused of having ran through. I

A
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can't be for certain -- because I have seen sO many
of these videos -- but I tend to think that maybe
we did look at that video, and that one showed a
California roll-through, but I can't say for
certain.

Did y'all have any discussion about whether on the
video it would show or could show that they weren't
wearing their seat belts?

I can't recall at this time, but I do know if that
was an issue, if I saw somethiﬁg on the video that

would have given me any indication that it was an

~

illegal stop, then we would have pursued it. So I !

am confident it was nothing that I saw on the video
that would have led me\to believe that.

Before what ended up being the pretrial motions in
the plea, there had been two Rjea offers? Is that
your recollection?

Yes, that's right.

And those Qbu]d have been -- because they were. for
15 and, I think, 20 -- those would have been the
trafficking seconds; righf?
That's right. )
And he was adamant that he was not taking those?
Well, he said he wasn't going to take them, yes;

but I can't say he was adamant on them. That's
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kind of ambiguous, but he did say that he wasn't
going to take them.

I don't want to use the word adamant again, but was
he pretty b I mean, was he pretty set on going to
trial in the case?

I be15eve S0.

Do you know what §ort of changed at the pretrial
hearing or whatever to sort of change his mind,
going from a trial éetting to a plea?

I don't think it was the pretrial hearing. I think

-the day before we saw that -- it was the video.

Okay.

The video -- and he and I discussed this at

length -- but the video, as I stated earlier, added
another hurdle because they already had a written
confession. They had a boatload of drugs. And now
they had a video to boot.

I explained to him that it was a lot of
hurdles to get across. We went back and forth with
the offers tbat were being made by the State.
Actualily, on the day'of trial, the State was up to
20.

That was thg day the State was up to 20 years.
He wouldn't take that. He wouldn't take the 15.

So we commenced with proceeding forward with the
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trial.

Mr. Weaver,‘going back to the stop sign, are you
certain that that was what initiated the stop? Or
do you recall if that was the seat belt?

I know it was at that stop sign, and I know it Was
within 40-yards of the stop sign; but I can't
remember if it was the roll-through or it could
have been the seat belts.

But the point I am making is the police
vehicle was not behind that vehicle for a long
period of time. From the time that the infraction
occurred to the time that the vehicle came to a
complete rest couldn't have been the length of this
courtroom.

Okay. I know you have just reviewed the
transcript, as I recently received it as well.

Yes.

You would agree though that the solicitor states
that they observed the vehicle approach a stop sign
and observed neither was wearing a seat belt. So
that would have been the reason for the stop?

Based on failure to have on seat belts, he made a
traffic stop?

What page is that on?

It's on page 36. It begins at 1ine 7 on 36.
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you,

Yes, I see it.
Okay. Do you recall there being a preliminary
hearing?
Yes, there was a preliminary hearing, sir.
Do'you recall what happened at the preliminary
hearing?
I don't recall what happened at the preliminary
hearing. I know generally what I try to do at the
preliminary nearing. If I see a case that is this
strong, I try to at least get a good idea for what
the facts are. So I'm certain that I asked thé
officer what the cause for the stop was at the
preliminary hearing.
Thank you, Mr. Weaver. That's all the questions
that I have.

MS. COLEMAN: Nothing further.

THE COURT: Sir, you may step down. Thank

THE WITNESS: Thank you, Your Honor.
(The witness leaves the witness stand.)

MS. COLEMAN: The State has no further

witnesses, Your Honor.

Mr.

THE COURT: Anything by way of argument,
Boozer?

MR. BOOZER: Nothing further, Your Honor.
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MS. COLEMAN: Nothing from the State. Thank
you.

(Pause.)

THE COURT: I will take a look at it and let
you all know.

*** END OF REQUESTED TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD ***
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CERTIFICATE

I, the undersigned L. Coconut Pantsari, Official
Reporter for the Third Judicial Circuit of the State of
South Carolina, do hereby certify that the foregoing is
a true, accurate, and complete Transcript of Record of
all the proceedings had and the evidence introduced in
the trial oflthe captioned cause, relative to appeal, in
the Civ11 Court for Williamsburg County, South Carolina,
on the 27th day df March, 2017. | \

I do further certify that I am neither of Kin,

counsel, nor interest to any party hereto.

July 21, 2017

s/L.Coconut Pantsari

Court Reporter
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )  IN GENERAL SESSIONS COURT 2, o
)  THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT o %,
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSBURG )  WARRANT NOS.: 2014A4510109,353, (3
) 364,366,368and370. - N 5
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) Bl
. ) 8 "f’
vs. ) MOTION TO SUPPRESS DEFDNDAN.TS’ <,
) STATEMENTS (, o
ROGER LEON FORTUNE III, ) '
)
DEFENDANT, )

Now comes the above Defendant, by and through his attorney, Marshall S.

Weaver, who moves pursuant to Jackson v. Denno and companion cases for the Court to

suppress a statement made on or about May 2, 2014 for the following reasons:

1. The Defendant’s statement was not knowingly, intelligently and voluntarily made.

2. The Defendant’s Miranda warnings were not given to Defendant before the

statement was made,

\

3. The Defendant was in custody at the time the statement was given,

4. The statement is hearsay and does not fall within any of the delineated exceptions

for hearsay.

WHEREFORE, the Defendant prays that the Court hold a pretrial Jackson v.

Denno hearing to determine the admissibility of the statement made by the

Defendant,

Kingstree, South Carolina
Date: October 13,2014

: )
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED,

AT e

MARSHALL S. WEAVER, ESQUIRE
ATTORNEY FOR DEFENDANT

A CERTIFIRD TRUE gop.

a4 /’sz‘ Gggrre
SHARON w, STAGGERS
CLBRX OF CouRy
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]
$TATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

}  INTHE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSBURG ) THIRD JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
) -
Roger Leon Fortune, #301471, ) 2015-CP-45-343 3
. ) =
Applicant, ) \_
) -
v ) 2
) ORDER OF DISMISSAL ~ n
. i ) . —
%tatc of South Carolina, ) ol
‘ )
Respondent. ) .
) S

This matter comes before the Court by way of a post-conviction relief (PCR) application

' ﬁled on July 17,2015, Respondent made its Return on October 28, 2015. An evidentiary hearing

\?/as convened on March 27, 2017, at the Sumter County Courthouse. Applicant was present at
ti’xe hearing and was represented by lLance Boozer, Esquité. Respondent was represented by
Assistant Attorney General Julie A. Coleman of the South Carolina Attorney General's Office.

: Applicant testified on his own behalf{ at the evxdennary hearing. Applicant’s plea counsel,
lYlarshall Weaver, Esquire (“Plea Counsel”) also testified. The Court had before it a copy of the
quxlty plea transcript, the records of the Sumter County Clerk of Court regarding the subject
c%onvictions, Applicant’s records from the South Carolina Department of Cormrections, and the
q:leadings. The Court finds as foliows:

. I.  PROCEDURAL HISTORY

‘ The records before this Court indicate that Applicant is presently confined in the South
Carolina Department of Correclions.purs‘uant to orders of commitment of the Williamsburg
County Clerk of Court. Applicant was true bill indicted at the July 2014 term of the
Williamsburg County Grand Jury for trafficking crack cocaine (28-100 grams) (3rd or

subsequent offense); trafficking cocaine (10-28 grams) (3rd or subsequem offense); possession

Page 1010 /) ’)7 [0
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with intent to distribute heroin (3rd or subsequent); possession with intent to distribute
marijuana; possession of schedule I to IV controlled substance (3rd or subsequent offense),
Marshall Weaver, Esquire represented Applicant. On October 15, 2014,;Applicant pled guilty as
iindicted before the Ilonorable Clifton Newman. Judge Newman sentenced Applicant without

negotiations or recommendations to five year term of imprisonment for possession of scheduled
; \
L 11, or IIf drugs, one year term of imprisonment for possession of Schedule 1V drugs —first

('}ffense, ten year term of imprisonment for trafficking in methamphetamine or cocaine base — 28
!
%rams or more but less than 100 grams, eleven year term of imprisonment for possession with

intent to distribute heroin, and ten year term of imprisonment for trafficking in cocaine ten grams

i
i
1

q’;: more — second offense with all sentences running concurrently. Applicant did not appeal his
éuilty plea or sentence.

II. ALLEGATIONS

v

In his current application, Applicant alleges that he is being held in custody unlawfully
$ased on the following allegations:

i 1. Ineffective assistance of counsel
. a. lnitial stop of the vehicle was not justified
b. 1 wrote a false statement out of hope and fear in which thc police
officer used a question first Miranda warnings later tactic
¢. My lawyer did not go through with the pre-trial motions we discussed.
d. The police officer made up the reason for the stop and probable cause.
e. After telling him over and over I didn’t no (sic) about the drugs, he
told me the only way he could help is if 1 told him something about the
drugs, so I made up a story and {old him....

HI. APPLICABLE LAW

In a post-conviction relief action, the Applicant bears the burden of proving the
gllegations in their application. Butler v. State, 286 S.C. 441, 334 S.E.2d 813 (1985). Where the
application alleges ineffective assistance of cgunsel as a ground for relief, the Applicant must

prove that "counsel's conduct so undermined the proper functioning of the adversarial process

4 7/
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that the trial cannot be relied upon as having produced = just tesult.” Strickland v. Washington,
466 U.S. 668, (1984); Butler, 334 S.E.2d 813.

The proper measurc of performénce is whether the attorney provided representation
within the range of competence required in <\:riminal cases. The courts presume that counsel
rendered adequat;e assistance and made all significant decisions in the exercise of reasonable
professional judgment. Strickland, 466 U.S. 668. Applicant must overcome this presumplion in
qrder to receive rclief, Cherry v. State, 300 S.C. 115, 386 S.E.2d 624 (1989).

Courts Huse a two-prongeé test in evaluating allegations of incffective assistance of
counsel. Id. at 117, 386 S.E.2d at 625. First, the applicant must prove counsel’s performance was
deficient. Jd. Under this prong, courts measure an attorncy's perfoﬁnance by its "reasénableness
under prevailing professional norms." Id. (citing Strickland, 466 U.S. at 688). Second, any
deficient performance must havc prejudiced the applicant such that “there is a reasonable
probability that, but for counsel's unprofessionél errors, the result of the proceeding would have
been different.” 1d, at 117-18, 386 S.E.2d at 625. With respect to guilty pleas, the Applicant must
siaow that there is a reasonable probability that, but for counsel's alleged errors, he would not
h;avc pled guilty anid would have insisted on going to trial. Hill v. Lockhart , 474 U.S. 52, 106
.C1. 366 (1985).

V. SUMMARY OF RELEVANT TESTIMONY

Applicant testified that he is currently serving an eleven year sentence. He stated that he
v?as originally charged with trafficking crack, trafficking cocaine, possession with intent to
distribute cocaine, possession of pills, and possession of marijuana. He testified that they were

about to go to trial on his charges, but his attorney made a motion to reopen the State’s plea offer

of fiftecn ycars for all charges. Applicant stated that the trial court granted his motion and he

’/ ”
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dccepted the offer and chose 1o plead guilty. He stated that he pled guilty to all charges, but he
pled down to trafficking, second offense, rather than trafficking, third offense, and he received an

gleven year sentence.

i Applicant testified that he went into a room in the middle of the pre-trial hearings to-

4iscuss a plea. He stated that he did not want to accept the plea offer, but Plea Counsel talked
liim into it. He staled that he wanted to go to trial but Plea Counsel lacked confidence and he
\I;vould not have represented him to the best of his ability.

Plea Counsel fesiified that the State extended a plea offer before Applicant’s trial, but it
)iad a finite deadline, and the day after the offer closed, the State turned over a new piece of
e%videncev—a videotape of Applicant in the police car telling the person with him to take the fall
iior the drugs. Plea Counsel stated that he argued to the trial court before the trial began that the
$tate should reopen their plea offer because it was not fair to close the offer without offering all
éiscovery, and the trial court granted his motion and reopgned the offer. He stated that, at that
}?oint, he and Applicant discussed the plea offer, and Applicant chose to accept the offer instead
(?f proceed to trial, ‘ , \
‘ Plea Counsel testified that he intended to argue his motion to suppress the videotape
l;efore the trial began, but Applicant chose to plead guilty before hcrargued them. He stated that
1|f he had argucd his motions before the trial court, the State would have revoked their offer, so he
gould not argue his pre-trial motions if Applicant wanted to accepl the plea de}al, He stated that
If\pplicant was charged with trafficking, third offense, but he pled down to trafficking, second
ci;ffense in exchange for his guilty plea, Plea Counsel testified that Applicant had the proper prior
cionvictions to enhance his trafficking charge; Applicant was convicted of possession of
methamphetamine/cocaine in 2010 and trafficking ice in 2004. He stated that he explained 1o

AL
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Applicant the drug enhancement statute, but he did not believe him, so he specifically asked the
plea judge to explain the enhancement statute to Applicant on the record.

Plea Counsel testified that if he had seen anything on the videotape or in the discovery
ihdicating that the stop of the vehicle was illegal, he would have noticed and argucd that to the
trial court, but he did not. He stated that the evidence against Applicant was very strong and
included a written confession, the videotape of his interaction in the police car with the person he
was arrested with, and a very large amount of drugs. He testified that it was Applicant’s decision
té) plead guilty.

VL.  FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
: This Court has had the opportunity to review the record in ils entirety and has heard the
uitstimony at the post-conviction relief hearing. This Court has further had the opportunity to
observe the witness\cs presented at the hearing, closely pass upon their credibility and weigh their
téstimony accordingly. Set forth below are the relevant findings of facts and conclusions of law
af required pursuant to 8.C. Code Ann. §17-27-80 (1985).

As a mattcr‘ of general impression, this Court finds Applicant’s testimony to be not
c;cdible. In contrast, this Court finds Plea Counsel’s testimony to be very credible. These
ﬁ.ndings are applied to the specific findings below.

INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEIL

Applicant alleges Counsel was ineffective in his advice surrounding his guilty plea. In
p?st-conviction relief cases, an applicant asserting a constitutional violation must frame the issue
a:k one of ineffective assistance of counsel. See Al-Shabazz v. State, 338 S.C. 354, 363, 527
sli'a.zd 742, 747 (1999) (citing Drayton v. Evatt, 312 S.C. 4, 9, 430 S.E.2d 517, 520 (1993)). An

applicant who pleads guilty on the advice of counscl may collaterally attack the plea only by

i
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showing that (1) counsel was ineffective and (2) therc is a reasonable probability ﬂ;at but for
counsel’s errors, the applicant would not have pled guilty and would have insisted on going to
tlrial. Roscoe v. State, 345 S.C. 16, 20, 546 S.E.2d 417, 419 (2001) (citations omitted). An
d!pplicant alleging his guilty plca was induced by ineffective assistance of counsel must prove
that counsel's advice was not "within the range of competence demanded of attorneys in criminal
cases." Hill v. Lockhart, 474 U.S. 52, 56, 106 S. Ct. 366, 369 (1985).

Applicant has [ailed to meet his burden in proving Plea Counsel was ineffective in any
n;:gard. This Court finds that Plea Counsel properly relayed the State's plea negotiations and went
over the discovery with Applicant, as well as fully explained the possible outcomes in
s;ntcncing. This Court finds that Plca Counsel’s representation did not fall below the standards
o%f professional norms in any manner. Base’.d on the testimony presented and the record before the
court, this Court finds that Plea Counsel's representation was not ineffective in any regard.

Applicant alleges that Plea Counsel was ineffective for failing to arguc the pre-trial
niotions that they discussed. Plea Counsel credibly testified, afxd the transcript clearly shows, that
if Plea Counsel had gone forward and argued the pre-trial motions he had filed, the State would
withdraw their plea offer. The trial court granted Plea Counsel’s motion to reopen the Statc’s
offer, but it was understood. by all parties that Applicant needed to accept or reject that offer
before they moved forward to any other motions. Applicant intelligibly chose to plead guilty
rdther than proceed to trial, so there was no reason for Plea Counsel to argue his motions.

Plea Counse] went above and beyond the standards of representation in this case, and he
dild everything he could to represent Applicant in the face of very strong evidence against him.
Plea Counsel was not deﬁcic;nt in any regard, and there was no prejudice to Applicant from any
% I,

4
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of Plea Counsel’s actions or inactions. Therefore, this allcgation is denied apd dismissed with
prejudice.
INVOLUNTARY GUILTY PLEA
T;) the extent that Applicant argues his plea was not given freely and voluntarily, this

Court finds otherwise and concludes that Applicant's plea was entered freely and voluntarily. To

find a guilty plea is voluntarily and knowingly entered into, the record must establish the
<

defendant had a full understanding of the cénsequcnccs of his plea and the charges against him. -

E,onkin v. Alabama, 395 U.S. 238, 89 S. Ct. 1709, 23 L.Ed.2d 274 (1969). Defendant's knowing
a'nd voluntary waiver of statutory or constiFutional rights must be established by a complete
r%¢c0rd, and "may be accomplished by cq]loqﬁy between court and defendant, between court and
d}:fcndam's counsel, or both." Roddy v. State, 339 S.C. 29, 34, 528 S,E.2d 418, 421 (2000)
(¢iting State v. Ray, 310 S.C. 431, 437, 427 S.E.2d 171, 174 (1993)). A guilty plea is a solemn,
judicial admission of the truth of the charges against an individual; thus, a criminal inmate's right
td contest the validity of such a plea is uslually, but not invariably, foreclosed. Dalton v. State,
3%76 S.C. 130, 137-38, 654 S.E.2d 870, 874 (Ct. App. 2007) (citing Blackledge v. Allison, 431
US 63,97 S. Ct. 1621, 52 L.Ed.2d 136 (1977)). Therefore, statements made during a guilty plea
should be considered conclusive unless a criminal inmate presents valid reasons why he should

be allowed to depart from the truth of his statements. Crawford v. United States, 519 F.2d 347

(4th Cir.1975).
This Court finds that the rccord reflects that Applicant was fully advised of the rights he
v.{as giving up by pleading guilty. Applicant presented no credible evidence as to why he should

bé able to depart from his statcments at the plea hearing. This Court finds very credible Plea

D,
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Gounsel's testimony that he adviscd Applicant of all facts and risks of pleading guilty, and that it
was Applicant’s decision to plead guilty. ,

The record reflects Applicant fully admitted his guilt to the plca court. "A guilty plea
cbnstitutes a waiver of nonjurisdictional defects and claims of violations of constitutional rights.”

Jamison v. State, 410 S.C. 456, 467, 765 S.E.2d 123, 129 (2014) (citing State v. Rice, 401 S.C.

330, 331-32, 737 S.E.2d 485, 485-86 (2013); Hyman v. State, 397 S.C. 35, 44, 723 S.E.2d 375, |

379 (2012)). Notably the South Carolina Supreme Court has held "[a] guilty plea represents a
bj:*eak in tht;, chain of events which has preceded it in the criminal process.” Id. (citations
omitted). "When a criminal defendant has solemnly admitted in open court that he is in fact
g:uilty of the offense with whick} he is charged, he may not thereafter raise independent claims
r¢lating to the deprivation of constitutional rights that occurred prior to the entry of the guilty
plea.” Id. (citing Rice, 401 S.C. at 332, 737 S.E.2d at 486). Thercfore, this Court finds the plea
judge correctly found Applicant's plea was freely, voluntary, and intelligently made.
Accordingly, this allegation must be denied and dismissed with prejudice.
UNDERLYING EVIDENCE

This Court finds that the remaining allegations Applicant argues in his application are
attempting to challenge the sufficiency of the underlying evidence in his case, and he waived his
tight to challenge this evidence by pleading guilty. A guilty plea generally acts as a waiver of all
non-jurisdictional defects and defenses. State v. Munsch, 287 8.C. 313, 338 S.E.2d 329 (1985).
Tbc plea admits all elements of the offense charged, “leaves open for review only the sufficiency
oé‘ the indictment and waives all other defenses.” Id. at 314, 338 S.E.2d at 330; cf. United States

v, Broce, 488 U.8. 563, 569, 109 S.Ct. 757 (1989). Applicant waived his right to challenge the

i
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stop of the vehliclc and the State’s cvidence against him by pleading guilty. Therefore, these
allegations are denied and dismissed with prejudice.
ALL OTHER ALLEGATIONS

As to any and all allegations that were raised in the application or at the hearing in this
matter and not specifically addressed in this Order, this Court finds the Applicant failed to
present any testimony, a;gument, or cvidencc at the hearing regarding such allegations.
Accordingly, this Court finds the Applicant has abandoned any such allegations.

VII. CONCLUSION

Based on all the forcgoing, this Court finds and concludes that Applicant has not
eftablished any constitutional violations or deprivations that would require this court to grant his
ai)plication. Therefore, this application for“\post-conviction relief must be denied and dismissed
with prejudice.

This Courl notes that Applicant must file and serve a notice of appeal within thirty days
from the receipt by counse] of written noticc of entry of judgment to secure the appropriate
appellate review. See Rule 203, SCACR. Pursuant to Austin v. State, 305 8.C. 453 (1991), an
A;-pplicam has a right to an appellate counsel’s assistance in sceking review of the denial of post-
conviction }elief. Rule 71.1(g), SCRCP, provides that if the )applicant wishes to scck appellate
review, post-conviction relief counsel must serve and file a Notice of Appeal on the Applicant’s
be¢half. Applicant is directed to South Carolina Appcllate Court Rule 243 for appropriate
pl*;ocedu:es for ap;;eal.

[signature page lo follow(
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IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED:

1. That the application for Post-Conviction Relief is denied and
dismissed with prejudice; and

2. The Applicant must be remanded to the custody of the Respondent.

AND IT IS SO ORDERED this 2.5 day of &n’/ , 2017,

D. CRA!G BROWN/
Presiding Judge
Third Judicial Circuit

l%ﬁ” , South Carolina

@ﬁgﬁ”" |
/
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{ (
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) IN THE COURT OF
; COMMON PLEAS
County of Williamsburg ) 3rd Judicial Circuit
)
: )
Roger Leon Fortune, 111. )
Petitioner )
) NOTICE OF APPOINTMENT
) FOR LEGAL COUNSEL
Vs, )
)
) Case Number 2015-CP-45- 343
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )
)
Defendant )

To: Boozer,Attorney at Law

By order of the Chief Administrative Judge and pursuant to Rule 608, SCACR, you are hereby appointed

to act as attorney for Roger Leon Fortune, 111, the Petitioner, in this action.

This 9™ day of Sept, 2015.

/ . S&mm_\aa_&lag%frs
JudgefClerl’df Court

SCCA 265 (2/04)




‘NITNESSES

Seth Scott
Williamsburg County Sheriff

ARREST WARRANT NUMBER
2014A4510100363 2014A4510100364
2014A4510100365 2014A4510100366
2014A4510100367 2014A4510100368
2014A4510100369 2014A4510100370
2014A4510100371 2014A4510100372
ACTION OF GRAND JURY ’

TRUE BILL

Dae 1R

Yoy
Forepsrgon Gmnd-ﬂlfy
Date::z Bl ‘li

VERDICT

Foreperson of Petit Jury
Date:

DOCKET NO. 2014-GS-45-0210
The State of South éarolina

County of WILLIAMSBURG

COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

JULY TERM 201

THE STATE

vS.

ROGER LEON FORTUNE
NICHOLAS TURNER

Indictment for

TRAFFICKING CRACK COCAINE (28 TO 100 GRAMS)
(3*° OR SUBSEQUENT FOR FORTUNE);

TRAFFICKING COCAINE (10 TO 28 GRAMS) (3°° OR
SUBSEQUENT FOR FORTUNE);

PWID HEROIN (3%° OR SUBSEQUENT FOR
FORTUNE);

PWID MARIJUANA;

PWID SCHEDULE I TO IV CONTROLLED
SUBSTANCE (3"° OR SUBSEQUENT FOR FORTUNE)

FuvestfiT

ERNEST A. FINNEY, i, SOLICITOR

eel
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. ATTACHED TO AND BECOMING PART OF THE ORIGINAL INDICTMENT FOR 2014-GS-45-0210

WITH THE AFORESAID NAME OF ROGER LECON FORTUNE AND NICHOLAS TURNER SHOWN
THEREON: , ,

COUNT THREE - POSSESSION WITH INTENT TO DISTRIBUTE HEROIN

That Roger Leon Fortune and Nicholas Turner did in Williamsburg County on or about
May 1, 2014, possess with intent to distribute, dispense or deliver, or did aid, abet, attempt or
conspire to distribute, dispense, or deliver a quantity of Heroin, a Schedule I controlled
substance under the provisions of §44-53-110, et. seg., S. C. Code of Laws, 1976, as amended,
such possession not having been authorized by law, in violation of §44-53-0370(b)(1), S. C.
Code of Taws, 1976, as amended this being a third or subsequent offense for Roger Fortune.

COUNT FOUR - POSSESSION WITH INTENT TO DISTRIBUTE MARTJUANA

That Roger Leon Fortune and Nicholas Turner did in Williamsburg County on or
about May 1, 2014, possess with intent to distribute, dispense or deliver, or did aid, abet,
attempt or conspire to distribute, dispense or deliver a quantity of Marijuana, a controlled
substance under the provisions of §44-53-110, et.seq., Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as
amended, such distribution not having been authorized by law, and being in violation of §44-53-
370(d)(2), S. C. Code of Laws, 1976, as amended.

COUNT FIVE - POSSESSION WITH INTENT TO DISTRIBUTE SCHEDULE I-IV
CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES

That Roger Leon Fortune and Nicholas Turner did in Williamsburg County on or
about May 1, 2014, possess with intent to distribute, dispense or’deliver, or did aid, abet,
attempt or conspire to distribute, dispense or deliver a quantity of schedule I-IV controlled
substances, to wit; Oxycodone, Xanax (a.k.a. Alprazolam), and Clonazepam, all schedule I-IV
controlled substance under the provisions of §44-53-110, et.seq., Code of Laws of South
Carolina, 1976, as amended, such distribution not having been authorized by law, and being in
violation of §44-53-370, S. C. Code of Laws, 1976, as amended.

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such case made
and provided.

Solicitor
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA) INDICTMENT FOR
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSBU RG; TRAFFICKING CRACK COCAINE (28 TO 100 GRAMS) (3%°

OR SUBSEQUENT FOR FORTUNE);

TRAFFICKING COCAINE (10 TO 28 GRAMS) (3*° OR
SUBSEQUENT FOR FORTUNE);

PWID HEROIN (3%° OR SUBSEQUENT FOR FORTUNE);
PWID MARIJUANA;

PWID SCHEDULE | TO IV CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE (3%°
OR SUBSEQUENT FOR FORTUNE) .

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on July 31, 2014 the Grand Jurors of
WILLIAMSBURG County present upon their oath: \

COUNT ONE - TRAFFICKING COCAINE BASE, 28 GRAMS TO 1060 GRAMS

That Roger Leon Fortune and Nicholas Turner did in Williamsburg County on or
about May 1, 2014, knowingly, sell, deliver, purchase, or bring into this State; or did aid, abet,
attempt or conspire to sell, deliver, purchase or bring into this State, or was in actual or
constructive possession or attempted to become in actual or constructive possession of a quantity
of Cocaine Base in an amount of more than twenty-eight (28) grams but less than one-
hundred (100) grams, same being a controlled substance all within the meaning of §44-53-110,
et.seg., S. C. Code of Laws, 1976, as amended, such possession not having been authorized and
in violation of §44-53-375(c)(2), S. C. Code of Laws, 1976, as amended, for the crime of

+ trafficking, this being a third or subsequent offense for Roger Fortune.

COUNT TWO - TRAFFICKING COCAINE, 10 GRAMS TO 28 GRAMS

That Roger Leon Fortune and Nicholas Turner did in Williamsburg County on or
about May 1, 2014, knowingly sell, deliver, purchase or bring into this State, or did aid, abet,
attempt or conspire to sell, deliver, purchase or bring into this State, or was in actual or
constructive possession, or attempted to become in actual or constructive possession of a
quantity of Cocaine in an amount of more than ten (10) grams, but less than twenty-eight
(28) grams, the same being a controlled substance, all within the meaning of §44-53-370, et.
seq., S. C. Code of Laws,- 1976, as amended, such possession not having been authorized, and
being in violation of §44-53-370(e)(2)(a), S. C. Code of Laws, 1976, as amended, for the crime
of Trafficking, this being a third or subsequent offense for Roger Fortune.
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STATE OF SUUTH CAKULINA ) 1IN ‘THE CUUR1 UK GENERAL SEMSIUNS
COUNTY OF Williamsburg g
STATE VS. ) INDICTMENT/CASE#: 2014-GS-45-0210
Roger Leon Fortune )  A/WH#: _2014A4510100363
ARA: )  Dateof Offense: _5/1/2014
Race: Black Sex: M 31 © 8.C.Code § :_44-53-0370(b)(2)
—= ) :
pos: [Jsez__ss#: - )  CDRCode#: _ 0186
Address: . )
City,State,Zip: )
. . . SENTENCE SHEET
DL#: SID#: )
*CDL Yes[] No[[] CMV Yes[] No[] Hazmat Yes[ ] No[]
In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant who was [J CONVICTEDOF or ﬂPLEADS
TO: Drugs/ Manuf, poss. of other sub. in Sch. I, II, ITI or flunitrazepam or analogue, w.i.t.d, - 1st
in violationof § 44-53-0370(b)}(2) of the S.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 0186
A NON-VIOLENT (0 VIOLENT []SERIOUS [JMOST SERIOUS [JMandatory GPS(CSC [§17-2545
w/minor 1st or Lewd Act)

The charge is: As Indicted, []Lesser Included Offense, [ ]Defendant Waives Presentment to (defendant's initials
Recommendatlon by the State.

Thepleais:  “§/]Without Negotiations or Recommendation, [] Negotiated Sentencely
ATTEST;
TAETS, VK R Tt 7875
Bréy, Tyler —— SC Bar# Defendant . Attorney for Defendant SC Bar#
WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commited to the {\ State Department of Corrections, [] County Detention Center,
for a determinate term of 5 days/monr [ underthe Youthful Offender Act not to exceed years
and/or to pay a fine of ; provided that upon the service of days/months/years and/or payment

of $ ; plus costs and assessments as applicable*; the balance is suspended with probation for

months/years and subject to South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of

probation, which are incorporated by reference.

Y] CONCURRENT or [J CONSECUTIVE to sentence on:
The Defendant is to be given credit for time served pursuant to S.C. Code § 24-13-40 to be calculated and applied

by the State Department of Corrections.

[ The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code §17-25-135.

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 922,it is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Criminal
Domestic Violence ) to ship,transport,possess,or receive a firearm or ammunition,

SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
[CJRESTITUTION: [ ] Deferred [] Def. Walves Hearing [ ] Ordered  PTUP
Total: $ plus 20% fee: $ days/hours Public Service Employment
Payment Tertms: Obtain GED  []
[J Setby SCDPPPS Attend Voc. Rehab. or Job Corp.
— May serve W/E begining :
Recipient: Substance Abuse Counseling O
*Fine: $ Random Drug/Alcohol testing O
§ 14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5 %) $ Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
§ 14-1-211(A)(1) (Conv. Surcharge) $100 $ /0D pmts.of§ ______ beginning
§ 14-1-211¢A)(2) (DUI Surcharge) $100 [ .
§ 56-5-2995 (DUI Assessment) s12 5 $ paid to Public Defender Fund
§ 56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) $25 5 Other:
Proviso 47.9 (Public Def/Prob) $500 3
§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) $25 3 9’5 50 "
§ 14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) $150 "§ 7o
§ 50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fee) $50 3
§ 56-5-2942()) (Vehicle Assessment) $40/ea $ . O Appointed PD or appointed other counsel,
Proviso 90.5 (SCCJA Surcharge) $5 $ H= § 47.12 requires $500 be paid to Clerk
3%1to County (if paid in installments) § Y.40 during probation.
TOTAL ok p d\/
: Presiding Judge ya M
Clerk of Court/ Deputy Clerk C__ Y Reum ) ( L% Judge Code: _ & ] T ]
Court Reporter: O/ lameta ) Raliie g Sentence Date:

SCCA/217 (03/2011)
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STATE UOFDUULTH CAKULINA ) IN THE COURT UF GENERAL SESSIUND
COUNTY OF Williamsburg g

STATE VS. ) INDICTMENT/CASE#:  2014-GS-45-0210

Roger Leon Fortune )  A/W# _2014A4510100364
' ) Date of Offense: _5/1/2014

Race: Black Sex: M Age: 31 ) S.C.Code § :_44-53-0370(b)(4)

DOB: —ESS#- ) CDRCode#: _ 0191

Address: _ L )

City,State,Zip:™

DL . SID#: ; SENTENCE SHEET

*CDL Yes[] Nof] CMV Yes{"] No{"] Hazmat Yes[ ] No[]

In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant who was [0 CONVICTED OF or wPLEADS

TO: Drugs / Manufacture, possession of Schedule V drugs with intent to distribute - 1st offense

in violationof § 44-53-0370(b)(4) of the S.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 0191
X NON-VIOLENT O VIOLENT ([JSERIOUS [JMOST SERIOUS [ JMandatory GPS(CSC [1817-25-45

w/minor 1st or Lewd Act)
The charge is: Indicted, []Lesser Included Offense, [T Defendant Waives Presentment to G Jury. (defendant’s initials)
The plea is: ithout Negotmhons or Recommendation, [] Negotiated Sentence, Recommendation by the State.
ATTEST: 4 -
&92, L ordins .« 787252
ler \-/ SC Bar# Defendant Attorney for Defendant SC Bar#

WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commited to the ¢ State Department of Corrections, [0 County Detention Center,
for a determinate term of :;z days/month@ or [ underthe Youthful Offender Act not to exceed years
and/or to pay a fine of § ; provided that upon the service of ! days/months/years and/or payment

of $ ; plus costs and assessments as applicable*; the balance is suspended with probation for

months/years and subject to South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of

probation, which are incorporated by reference.

K CONCURRENT or [J] CONSECUTIVE to sentence on: -
The Defendant is to be given credit for time served pursuant to S.C. Code § 24-13-40 to be calculated and applied

by the State Department of Corrections.

[] The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code §17-25-135.

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 922,it is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Criminal
Domestic Violence ) to shlp,transport,possess,or receive a firearm or ammunition.

SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
[JRESTITUTION: [ Deferred [ ] Def. WaivesHearing [ ]Ordered PTUP
Total: $ plus 20% fee: $ days/hours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms: Obtain GED 0
[] Setby SCDPPPS Attend Voc. Rehab, or Job Corp.
— May serve W/E begining
Recipient: Substance Abuse Counseling 0
*Fine: $ Random Drug/Alcohol testing O
§ 14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5 %) $ _ Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
§ 14-1-211(A)(1) (Conv. Surcharge) $100 § /5022 pmts. of $ beginning
§ 14-1-211(A)2) (DUI Surcharge) $100 $ ] . R
§ 56-5-2995 (DUI Assessment) $12 3 3 _______ paidto Public Defender Fund
§ 56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) $25 % Other:
Proviso 47.9 (Public Def/Prob) $500 $
§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) $25 $ 59—5
§ 14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) $150 T/%’i——
§ 50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fee) $50 $
§ 56-5-2942(J) (Vehicle Assessment) $40/ca § [ Appointed PD or appointed other counsel,
Proviso 90.5 (SCCJA Surcharge) $5 $5Z § 47.12 requires $500 be paid to Clerk
3%to County (if paid in installments) $ 2.4 during probation.
TOTAL TR \N
Presiding Judge @/ 5
Clerk of Court/ Deputy Clerk W, Judge Code: [ 2.4
Court Reporter: Sentence Date; oct 17,201y
SCCA/217 (03/2011) “ ' '
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STATE UF SUUTH CARULINA IN THE COUK1 OF GENERAL SESSIUNS
A

)
COUNTY OF Williamsburg ;
STATE VS. ) INDICTMENT/CASE#: 20 14-GSJ_15-02 10
Roger Leon Fortune )  A/W# _2014A4510100366
AKA: ) Date of Offense: _5/1/2014
Race: Black Sex: M Age: 31 ) S.C.Code § :_44-53-0375(C)(2)(c)
pos: 2 ss« N )  CDRCode#: __0349
Address: )
City,State,Zip:
DL#: SID#: % SENTENCE SHEET
*CDL Yes[ ] No[] CMV Yes[ ] No[[] Hazmat Yes[] No[]
In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant who was [J CONVICTEDOF or [OJPLEADS |
TO: Drugs / Trafficking in meth. or cocaine base - 28 g or more, but less than 100 g - 3rdrorsub—Fet A2 or Svb #BL

inviolationof § 44-53-0375(C)Q&H @ of the S.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 0349~ 03 8'&2 Lk

{7] NON-VIOLENT X VIOLENT [®SERIOUS [JMOST SERIOUS [JMandatory GPS(CSC [)§17-25-45
w/minor 1st or Lewd Act)

The charge is: As Indicted, MLe&ser Included Offense, [ ]Defendant Waives Presentment to Grand Jury. (defendant's initials
The plea is: ithout Negotiations or Recom7|j2:lation, Negotiated Sentence, [] Recommendation by the State% y

Ve s M 227252

SC Bar# efendant Attorney for Defendant SC Bar#

WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commited to the fX] State Department of Corrections, [] County Detention Center,
for a determinate term of l d days/monlhs@or [J under the Youthful Offender Act not to exceed years
and/éPto pay a fine of § 00,008.0_; provided that upon the service of days/months/years and/or payment
of § ; plus costs and assessments as applicable*; the balance is suspended with probation for

months/years and subjectto South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of
probation, which are incorporated by reference.
CONCURRENT or [J CONSECUTIVE to sentence on: \
The Defendant is to be given credit for time served pursuant to S.C. Code § 24-13-40 to be calculated and applied
by the State Department of Corrections.
[ The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code §17-25-135.

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 922,it is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Criminal
Domestic Violence ) to ship,transport,possess,or receive a firearm or ammunition.

. SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
[JRESTITUTION: [ Deferred [] Def. WaivesHearing ~ []Ordered  PTUP
Total: $ plus 20% fee: $ days/hours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms: Obtain GED [
] Setby SCDPPPS Attend Voc. Rehab. or Job Corp.
— May serve W/E begining
Recipient: Substance Abuse Counseling O
*Fine: IS5, 600 $ 50, 000 Random Drug/Alcohol testing O
§ 14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5 %) $ 53,750 Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
§ 14-1-211(A)(1) (Conv, Surcharge) $100 § /00 pmts. of $ beginning
§ 14-1-211(A)(2) (DUI Surcharge) $100 [ : :
§ 56-5-2995 (DUI Assessment) $12 3 $§  paidto Public Defender Fund
§ 56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) $25 73 Other:
Proviso 47.9 (Public Def/Prob) $500 $
§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) $25 “§ A=
§ 14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) $150 § 450
§ 50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fee) 350 $
§ 56-5-2942(J) (Vehicle Assessment) $40/ea  § [J Appointed PD or appointed other counsel,
Proviso 90.5 (SCCJA Surcharge) $5 $ 582 § 47.12 requires $500 be paid to Clerk
3%to County (if paid in installments) 3 5 during probation.
TOTAL $ /) M
<
Presiding Judge [\ m
Clerk of Court/ Deputy Clerk W P Judge Code: 7 L7
Court Reporter: rt” Sentence Date: Oc+ 1 7; 1lt

S

SCCA/217 (03/2011)
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STATE UF SUUIH CARULINA ) IN THE COUKY UF GENERAL SESMUNS 19~3 o
COUNTY OF Williamsburg ;
STATE VS. ) INDICTMENT/CASE#: _ 2014-GS-45-0210
Roger Leon Fortune )  A/W# _2014A4510100368
: ) Date of Offense: _5/1/2014
Race: Black Sex: M Age: 31 ) S.C.Code § :_44-53-0370(e)(3)(c)
poB: 2 ss+ S )  CDRCode# _ 0149
Address: )
City,State,Zip:
DL#: SID#: % SENTENCE SHEET
*CDL Yes[] No[] CMV Yes[] No[]] Hazmat Yes[] No[] "
In disposition of the sald mdxctment comes now the Defendant who CONV% or XPLEADS
TO TURS — ! - ﬁas H?M’A — P B
in violationof § 44-53-0370(9)(33@&)( l)@z'fthe S.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # oMo 165
54 NON-VIOLENT [J VIOLENT [JSERIOUS [MOSTSERIOUS []Mandatory GPS(CSC [1817-25-45
w/minor 1st or Lewd Act)
Thechargeis: [X] AsIndicted, [ JLesser Included Offense, [ ]Defemdant Waives Presentment to Grand Jury, {defendant’s initials)
i ithout Negotiations or Recomm anatlon, ﬁ Negotiated Sentence, [] Recommendation by the State, W ‘
Ut Y63/ b oy G, 2T 75752
N/ SC Bar# Defendant Attorney for Defendant SC Bar#
WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commited to the (B, State Department of Corrections, [] County Detention Center,
2 determinate term of / l days/monl.hs@ or [ underthe Youthful Offender Act nottoexceed  years
r to pay a fine of $ €0 ,dg0 _; provided that upon the service of days/months/years and/or payment
of § ; plus costs and assessments as applicable*; the balance is suspended with probation for

months/years and subjectto South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of
probation, which are incorporated by reference.
CONCURRENT or 7] CONSECUTIVE to sentence on:
The Defendant is to be given credit for time served pursuant to S.C. Code § 24-13-40 to be calculated and applied
by the State Department of Corrections.
[0 The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code §17-25-135.

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 922,it is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Criminal
Domestic Violence ) to ship,transport,possess,or receive a firearm or ammunition.

SPECIAL CONDITIONS: '
[IRESTITUTION: [] Deferred [ | Def. Waives Hearing [Jordered  PTUP
Total: $ plus 20% fee: $ days/hours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms: Obtain GED B
[J Set by SCDPPPS Attend Voc, Rehab, or Job Corp. !
— May serve W/E begining
Recipient; Substance Abuse Counseling O
*Fine: 85 o; oD $ 50,000 Random Drug/Alcohol testing 0
§ 14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5 %) $563, 750 Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
§ 14-1-211(A)(1) (Conv. Surcharge) $100 $ /dD,0® pmts. of beginning
§14-1-211(A)(2) (DUI Surcharge) $100 5 ;
§ 56-5.2995 (DUI Asscssment) $12 = $  paidto Public Defender Fund
§ 56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) $25 5 Other: :
Proviso 47.9 (Public Def/Prob) $500 §$
§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) $25 $ =
§ 14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) $150 °$ ,5055.
§ 50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fee) $50 §
§ 56-5-2942(J) (Vehicle Assessment) $40/ea § [J Appointed PD or appointed other counsel,
Proviso 90.5 (SCCJA Surcharge) $5 $ §= § 47.12 requires $500 be paid to Clerk
3%to Connty (if paid in installments) $ 3122 during probation.
TOTAL 3 tgﬂ 313 o3
- Presiding Judge & N QMQ
Clerk of Court/ Deputy Clerk () :— a7 Y Judge Cfde: g 4 117
Court Reporter:  CX1a a /M (7 Sentence Date: [ C;l‘ 15,29 ( ¢

SCCA/217 (03/2011)
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STAYTE UFSUUTH CAKULINA ) IN THE COUKYT OF GENERAL SESSIUNY
COUNTY OF Williamsburg ;
STATE VS, ) INDICTMENT/CASE#: __2014-GS-45-0210
Roger Leon Fortune ) A/WH: _ 2014A4510100370
AKA: : ) Date of Offense: _5/1/2014
Race: Black' Sex: _Age: 31 ) S.C.Code § :_44-53-0370(e}(2)(a)1
pos: [[losz ss#: )  CDRCode#: _ 0278
éggxgst:t:e Zip: ~ )
ity,State,Zip:
DL#: - SID#: g SENTENCE SHEET
*CDL Yes[] No[[] CMV Yes[] No[] Hazmat Yes[[] No[]
In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant who was -0 CONVICTED OF or $PLEADS
TO: Drugs/ Trafficking in cocaine, 10 g or more, but less than 28 g -—-}-st-eﬁ'enso-aﬂg OF @b

in violationof  § 44434)370@)(2)@)&## of the S.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 42730 3™} @

[T] NON-VIOLENT K] VIOLENT SERIOUS  [JMOST SERIOUS  []Mandatory GPS{CSC [1817-25-45
- w/minor 1st or Lewd Act)
The charge is: As Indicted, [R]Lesser Included Offense, [ ] Defendant Waives Presentment to Grand Jury. (defendant's initials)
The plea is: Without Negotiations or Recommendation, @ Negotiated Sentence, [ ] Recommendation by the State.
T: : .

ATTES Y3/l 4 73752

* SC Bar# efendant Attorney for Defendant SC Bar#
WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commited to the 4. State Department of Corrections, O County Detention Center,
for a determinate term of ! d days/monm@r [ underthe Youthful Offender Act not to exceed years
and/&@ to pay a fine of G O, dd¥..¢/’; provided that upon the service of days/months/years and/or payment
of $ ; plus costs and assessments as applicable*; the balance is suspended with probation for

months/years and subject to South Carolina Department of Probatlon, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of

probation, which are incorporated by reference.

¥ CONCURRENT or [[] CONSECUTIVE to sentence on:
The Defendant is to be given credit for time served pursuant to S.C. Code § 24-13-40 to be calculated and applied

by the State Department of Corrections.

[0 The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code §17-25-135.

Pursuant to 18 U.,S.C Section 922,it is unlawful for a person convicted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Criminal
Domestic Violence ) to ship,transport,possess,or receive a firearm or ammunition,

SPECIAL CONDITIONS:

CIRESTITUTION: [] Deferred [] Def. WaivesHearing [ ] Ordered  PTUP
Total: $ plus 20% fee: $ days/hours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms: i ObtainGED []
[J Setby SCDPPPS Attend Voc. Rehab. or Job Corp.

— May serve W/E begining
Recipient: Substance Abuse Counseling d
*Fine: #3530 $ 5, o Random Drug/Alcohol testing O
§ 14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5 %) $53,750 Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
§ 14-1-211(A)(1) (Conv. Surcharge) $100 "3 /Ob°S pmts. of $ beginning
§14-1-211(A)(2) (DUI Surcharge) $100 S - .
§ 56-5-2995 (DUI Assessment) s12 3 $ ™ paidto Public Defender Fund
§ 56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) $25 3 Other:
Proviso 47.9 (Public Def/Prob) $500 $
§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) $25 7§
§ 14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) $150 $ /509}
§ 50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Fee) $50 3
§ 56-5-2942(J) (Vehicle Assessment) $40/ca $ [0 Appointed PD or appointed other counsel,
Proviso 90.5 (SCCJA Surcharge) $5 § 52 § 47.12 requires $500 be paid to Clerk
3%to County (if paid in installments) $31A 3 during probation.
TOTAL $ {Qﬂb m (3]

Presiding Judge p// W m

Clerk of Court/ Deputy Clerk  (C YYA070\ Siaxs Judge Code: 717
Court Reporter:  YJAaN G LR ; Sentence Date: Det I{ 'Lf’l‘/’
SCCA{217 (03/2011)
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ARREST WARRANT

: 2014A4510100363

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
lzl County/ D Municipalty of
Williamsburg
THE STATE 14004337
against
Roger Leon Fortune
Addrass:

prorc: NN ssx DN

Sex M Race: B Height: Weight:
DL State: DL#
DOB: 982 Agency ORI ¥ SC0450000

Prosecuting Agency: ~ Williamsburg County Sheriff

Prosecuting Officer.  Seth Scott - 0073

Oftense: Drugs / Manuf., poss. of other sub. in Sch. LILIII
or flunitrazepam or analogue, w.i.t.d. - Ist offense

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) ORIGINAL  Comigmowar
E f:ounlyl D Municipafity of ) AFFIDAVIT A 21, 2002
Williamsburg

Personally appeared before me the affant Seth Scott ' who
being duly swom deposes and says that defendant Roger Leon Fortune

did within this county and state on orabout 5/1/2014 violate the cnmimal 1aws of the
State of South Carofina (or ordinance of County/ D Municipality of Williamsburg )

in the following particulars:

DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE: Drugs / Manuf,, poss. of other sub. in Sch. LILIII or flunitrazepam or analogue, w.i.td. - 1st offense

| further state that there is probable cause to belleve that the defendant
the crime set forth and that probable cause is based on the following facts:

named above did commit

That on May 1, 2014, located on County Line Road/Hwy.41, within Williamsburg County, one Roger Fortune did wilifully and
unlawfuily commit the offense of Possession of Control Substance with Intent to Distribute 1st. Roger Fortune did have in his
control and possession approximately 168 prescription pills. Possession of a Control Substance 1st with Intent to Distribute is in
violation of the South Carolina Code of Laws.

Offense Code: 0186 o= T
CodefOrdinance Sec: - 44-53-0370(b)(2) Signature of Afiant &Q IR
S v s e STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) "o S 17
[[] Countyt [ Municipality of K] County O] Munic.lpa'“-l'y of ) AflantsAddress 126 South Jackson Street  * = -- Lot
. The accused ) ) Kingstree, SC 29556~ ST A
is to be arested and  brought before me to be Williamsburg Affiant's Telephone  (843)355-6381 = -
daalt with according to the law. PrY
<
(€s]
it ARREST WARRANT
Signature of Judge .
Date: TO ANY LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER OF THIS STATE OR MUNICIPALITY OR ANY CONSTABLE OF THIS COUNTY:
it appearing from the above affidavit that there are reasonable grounds to belleve that
RETURN
on orabeut 5/ 1/2014 defendant Roger Leon Fortune
A copy of this amast warant was delivered, to
,Ll did violate the criminal laws of the S'ale_ol South Caroiina (or ordinance of
defendant ~0Z - K] County  [] Municpaltyol  Williamsburg ) as set forth below:
on o Léo TFoztunf

RETURN WARRANT TO:
General Sessions
125 W. Main Street
Kingstree, SC 29556

ORIGINAL ORIGINAL

DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE: Drugs / Manuf,, poss. of other sub. in Sch. LILIII or flunitrazepam or analogue, w.i.t.d. - Ist offense

Having found probable cause and the above affiant having swom befors me, you are empowered and directed {0 arrest the said defendant and bring him or
her before me forthwith fo be dealt with according to law. A copy of this Arrest Warrant shall be delivered o the defendant at the Uima of ils execution, or as
soon thereafler as is practicable

Sworn to and subscribed before me )
on 5/2/2014 - ) R
- < Judge's Address 209 Short Street
= cen—_ LS) ) Kingstree, SC 29556-
gna siihp Judge 0 N N
Delores Franklin Williams ) Judge's Telephone  (843)355-9565 x x277
Judge Code:  §992 ) Issuing Court: Magistrate L__] Municipal [:] Circuit
ORIGINAL ORIGINAL ORIGINAL ORIGINAL ORIGINAL

a4’



ARREST WARRANT

2014A4510100364

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

County/ D Municipality of

Williamsburg

THE STATE

against

&o_ger Leon Fortune

1404337

Addrass:

Phona:
Sex M Race: B Height:
DL State: DL#

SSN:

Woeight:

DOB: -1982 Agency ORI#  SC0450000
Prosecuting Agency: ~ Williamsburg County Sheriff

Prosecuting Officer; Seth Scott - 0073

offense: Drugs / Manufacture, possession of Schedule V

drugs with intent to distribute - 1st offense

Offense Code: 0191

Code/Ordinance Sec:  44-53-0370(b)(4)

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) ORIGINAL ?gm&:{“ﬂ
E County/ D Municipality of ) AFFIDAVIT Ao 21, 20m
Williamsburg ’ -
Personally appeared before me tha afiant  Seth Scott who
being duly swom deposes and says that defendant Roger Leon Fortune

did within this county and state on orabout 5/ 12014~ violale the crminal laws of the
Stale of South Carolina (or ordinance of County/ D Municipatity of Williamsburg )

in the following particulars:
DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE: Dyps / Manufacture, possession of Schedule V drugs with intent to distribute - 1st offense

| futher state that there is probable cause to befleve that the defendamt named above did commit
the crime set forth and that probable cause is based on the following facts:

That on 05/01/2014, located on County Line Road/Hwy 41, within Williamsburg County, one Roger Fortune did willfully and
unlawfully commit the offense of possession of Schedule V Drugs with Intent to Distrubute 1st. Roger Fortune did have in his
possession a large clear plastic bag weighing approximately 3 Ibs filled with a green plantlike substance believed to be Marijuana.

Possession of Schedule V Drug with Intent to Di\stribute Ist is in Violation of the South Carolina Code of Laws.

Signature of Affiant § o L

' pOte) H

IS warrant s N (he
D County/ [:I Municipality of
. The accused
is  to be amesied and brought before me to be
dealt with according fo the law.
S
‘Signatum of Judge
Date:
RETURN

A copy of this amest wamanm was delivered fo

defendamt  ° b9 & leor Fordunrc

on 05-'_0_2_-’?

ure Of

RETURN WARRANT TO:
General Sessions
125 W. Main Street
Kingstree, SC 29556

ORIGINAL ORIGINAL

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) S
E] County/ D Municipalty of ) Affiant's Address 1.26 South Jackson Street deody . }
) Kingstree, SC 29556- o -
Williamsburg Affiants Telephone  (843)355-6381 ) -
- = :
co
) ARREST WARRANT )

TO ANY LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER OF THIS STATE OR MUNICIPALITY OR ANY CONSTABLE OF THIS COUNTY:
It appearing from the above affidavit that there. are reasonable grounds to belisve that

on orabout 5/1/2014 defendant Roger Leon Fortune
did violate the criminal laws of the State of Scuth Carolina (or ondinance of
County/ D Municipality of Williamsburg ) as sel forth below:

DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE: Drugs / Manufacture, possession of Schedule V drugs with intent to distribute - [st offense

Having found probable cause and the above affiant having swom before me, you are empowered and direcled to arrest the sald defendant and bring him or
her before me forthwith to be dealt with according to law. A copy of this Arrest Waimant shall be delivered lo the defendant at the time of its execution, or as
soon thereafter as is practicable

Swom to and subscnbed before me )
on 3/272014 ) Judge’s Add, 209 Short Street
udge'’s ress Ol ee
Jes, x pIilloon 081 ) Kingstree, SC 20556~
“Tonatro of BRamg Jagge g X
Delores Franklin Williams dudge's Tetephone  (843)353-9565 X X277
Judga Code:  §992 ) Issuing Court: Magistrate |___] Municipal D Circuit
ORIGINAL - ORIGINAL ORIGINAL ORIGINAL ORIGINAL

Y44’



ARREST WARRANT

- 2014A4510100366

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
County/ D Municipality of
Williamsburg
THE STATE 44004337
against
Roger Leon Fortune
Address:
Phone: SSN:
Sex M Race: B Height: Weight:
DL State: DL#
DoB: 1982 Agency ORI#  SC0450000

Prosecuting Agency: ~ Williamsburg County Sheriff
Prosecuting Oficer.  Seth Scott - 0073
Offense: Drugs / Trafficking in ice, crank or crack - 28 g or

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) ORIGINAL SC. Atiomey Gemered
E County/ D Municipality of ) AFFIDAVIT Py
Williamsburg i

Personally appeared before me the affiant Seth Scott who
being duly swom deposes and says that defendant Roger Leon Fortune

did within this county and state on orabout 5/1/2014 violate the criminal laws of the
State of South Carelina (or ordinance of County/ D Municipality of Williamsburg )

in the following particulars:

DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE: [ynygs / Trafficking in ice, crank or crack - 28 g or more, but less than 100 g - 3rd or sub. (Fel., 25Y to
- 30Y)

| further state that there is probable cause fto believe that the defendant

named above did commit
the crime set forth and that probable cause is based on the following facts:

That on 05/01/2014, located on County Line Road/Hwy 41, within Williamsburg County, one Roger Fortune did willfully and
unlawfully committed the offense of Trafficking Cocaine Base 28 GM or more but less than 100 GM 3rd or subsequent offense.
Roger Fortune did have in his control and possession approximately 72.6 GM of a White in Color Rock like Substance that field
tested positive for Cocaine Base. Roger Fortune has two prior offenses on his criminal history for the same offense.

Trafficking Cocaine Base 28 GM or more but less than 100 GM 3rd ro Subsequent is in Violation of the-South:Carolina Code of

more, but less than 100 g - 3rd or sub. (Fel., 25Y to Laws. . T
Offense Code: 0349 at Lt 1 .
: . W " .l
CodelOrdinance Sec:  44-53-0375(C)(2) Signature ofAffant \N : )
s waman 1s mone STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA R St
[] county  [T] municipaity of K] Couny [] Municpatty of ; AffiantsAddress 126 South Jackson Street = ° =3
. The accused Kingstres, SC 29556- T
8 lo be amested and brought bafore me to be Williamsburg Affiant's Telephone  (843)355-6381 <
dealt with according to the law.
s ARREST WARRANT
Signature of Jutge
Date: TO ANY LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER OF THIS STATE OR MUNICIPALITY OR ANY CONSTABLE OF THIS COUNTY:
It appearing from the above affidavit that there are reasonable grounds to believe that
RETURN
/ 1/2014
A copy of this amest wamant was delivered lo on ofabout 3 defendant Roger Leon Fortune

dofendant 0 5 ~ 002~ /A'/
on z E; [ } T

Y O 81

RETURN WARRANT TO:
General Sessions
125 W. Main Street
Kingstree, SC 29556

ORIGINAL ORIGINAL

ORIGINAL

did viclate the criminal taws of the State of South Carolina (or ordinance of
E County/ D Municipality of Williamsburg

DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE: Drugs / Trafficking in ice, crank or crack - 28 g or more, but less than 100 g - 3rd or sub. (Fel., 25Y
10 30 ~

Having found probable cause and the above affiant having swom before me, you are empowered and directed to arrest the said defendant and bring him or

her before me forthwith to be dealt with according to faw. A copy of this Amest Warrant shall be defivered to the defendant at the time of its exacution, or as

soon thereafter as is practicable

)} as set forth below:

Swom {o and subscribed before me )
on 5/2/2014 )
- Judge'sAddress 209 Short Street
Zg : Q%ﬂ_a_, c)téd Lhoran, . LS) ) Kingstree, SC 29556-
igna of lasuing Judge . ¥
Delores Franklin Williams y udges Telephone - (843)355-9565 X X277
Judge Code: 5992 )  lssuing Court [Y] Magistrate [] Mmunicipat [] cireut
ORIGINAL ORIGINAL ORIGINAL ORIGINAL

vl



ARREST WARRANT

2014A4510100368

- STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
County/ D Municipality of
Williamsburg

THE STATE
against

14004337

Biger Leon Fortune

Address:

Phone: SS|

Sex M Race: B Height: Weight.

DL State: DL#

vos: OR2 Agency ORI#% _SC0450000

Prosecuting Agency: ~ Williamsburg County Sheriff

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) ORIGINAL f&"‘mﬁw
Kl County/ D Muricipality of ) AFFIDAVIT Saes
Williamsburg ) )
Personally sppeared before me the affant Seth Scoit who
being duly swom deposes and says that defendant Roger Leon Fortune

did within this county and state on orabout 5/1/2014 violate the criminal laws of the
State of South Carclina (or ordinance of County/ D Municipality of Williamsburg )

in the followming particulars:
DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE: Dyyos / Trafficking in Heroin, morphine, etc., 28 g or more

| further state that there s probable cause f{o belfleve that the deferdant
the cnme set forth and that probable cause is based on the following facts:

named above did commit

That on 05/01/2014, located on County Line Road/Hwy 41, within Williamsburg County, one Roger Fortune did willfully and
unlawfully committed the offense of Trafficking Heroin 28 GM or more. Roger Fortune did have in his control and possesssion
approximately 55.8 GM of a White in Color Powder Substande that field tested positive for Heroin.

Prosecuting Officer: Seth Scott - 0073 Trafficking in Heroin 28 GM or more is in Violation of the South Carolina Code of Laws.
ofiense: Drugs / Trafficking in Heroin, morphine, etc., 28 g ‘e
or more o -

Offense Code: 0149 ) —1 ’ o ’
CodefOrtinance Sec:  44-53-0370(e)(3) Signature of Affant ~N— RO

S warranl s tn 1he C -1 3o d
[] Countyr  [] Municpaityor | %’ch;;?m °ﬁ°:':gmm o ; AfiantsAcdress 126 South Jackson Street i3 i -

. The accused Kingstree, SC 29556- N
s W be amesed end broughl before me lo be Williamsburg ) Affiants Telephone  (843)355-6381 ()
dealt with according to the [law. -
-S) ARREST WARRANT
‘Signature of Judge
Date: TO ANY LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER OF THIS STATE OR MUNICIPAUITY OR ANY CONSTABLE OF THIS COUNTY:
It appeaing from the above affidavit that there are reasonable grounds 10 believe that
RETURN ’

A copy of this amest warrant was delivered to

defendant oS - gz~y

" o Piogen lrom TDMuNE

RETURN WARRANT TO:
General Sessions
125 W. Main Street
Kingstree, SC 29556

ORIGINAL ORIGINAL

ORIGINAL

on orabout 5/1/2014 defendant Roger Leon Fortune
dd violate the criminal laws of the State of South Carolina (or ordinance of
E County/ D Municipalty of Williamsburg

DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE: Drugs / Trafficking in Heroin, morphine, etc., 28 g or more

) as set forth below:

Having found probable cause and the above affiant having swom before me, you are empowered and directed to ammest the said defendant and bring him or
her before me forthwith to be dealt with according to law. A copy of this Arrest Wasrant shall be defivered to the defendant at the time of its execution, or as
soon thereafter as is practicable

Sworm to and subscnbed before me / )
on 5/2/2014 )
Judge's Address 209 Short Street
é! §§ g o N‘&».M Ls) ) Kingstree, SC 29556-
[ wng Y -
Delores Franklin Williams y JoeeeTeiephone  (343)355-9365 x X277
Judge Code: 5992 ) Issuing Court: Magistrate D Municipal D Circuit
ORIGINAL ORIGINAL ORIGINAL ORIGINAL

144"



ARREST WARRANT

- 2014A4510100370

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
@ County/ D Municipality of
Williamsburg
THE STATE 14004337
against
Roger Leon Fortune
Address:
Phone: SSN.
Sex M Race: B Height: Weighl.

DL, Stete: DL#

oos. (SR Agency ORI#._SC0450000

Prosecuting Agency:  Williamsburg County Sheriff

Prosecuting Officer.  Seth Scott - 0073

Offense: Drugs / Trafficking in cocaine, 10 g or more, but
less than 28 g - 1st offense

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) ORIGINAL :0::"" A';ng;ﬁgzm
K] Countyr 7] Municiaityof ) AFFIDAVIT onsre
Williamsburg ) - ~

Personally appeared before me the affiant Seth Scott who
being duly swom deposes and says that defendant Roger Lean Fortune

did within this counly and state on orabout 5/1/2014
State of South Canolina (or ondinance of County/
in the following pariculars:

violate the criminal iaws of the
Williamsburg )

[:] Municipality of

DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE: Dyygs / Trafficking in cocaine, 10 g or more, buf less than 28 g - 1st offense

| futher state that there is probable cause to belleve that the defendant
the crime set forth and that probabla cause is based on the following facts:

named above did commit

That on May 1, 2014, located on County Line Road/Hwy 41, within Williamsburg County, one Roger Fortune did willfully and
unlawfully committed the offense of Trafficking in Cocaine more than 10 but less than 100 GM. Roger Fortune did have in his
control and possesssion approxomately 24.8 GM of a White in Color Powder Substande that field tested positive for Cocaine Base.

Trafficking in Cocaine 10 GM or more but less than 100 GM is in Violation of the South Carolina Code of Laws.

Offense Code: 0278 B N 33 2
Code/Ordinance Sec:  44-53-0370(e)(2) Signature of Aflan \m - --;- .
= womant s e STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA T
[] Gounty [T Municipality of K] Courty [] Municipalty of ; AffiantsAddress 126 South Jackson Street .-~ - i
. The accused ) Kingstree, SC 29556~ ’ = )
' 1o ba amosted and broughl belcre me 1o be | Williamsburg Affiant's Telephone  (843)355-6381 s
dealt with according to the law. ray
<o
@89 ARREST WARRANT
Signature of Judgs * be
Date: TO ANY LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER OF THIS STATE OR MUNICIPALITY OR ANY CONSTABLE OF THIS COUNTY:
It appsaring from the above affidavit that there are reasonable grounds to believe that_
RETURN
A copy of this amest wamant was delivered to o'n orabout 5/ 1(2914 defendant —ELRO e Leon Fortune
defendant 0 s - 0 2~ l"' did violate the criminal la\:vf o'f the State of South Carofina (or ordinance of
on E County/ D Municipality of Williamsburg ) as set forth below:
DESCRIPTION OF OFFENSE: Drugs / Trafficking in cocaine, 10 g or more, but less than 28 g - 1st offense
Having found probable cause and the above affiant having sworn before me, you are empowered and directed to arrest the said defendant and bring him or
7 © Arcemen her before me forthwith 1o be dealt with according to law. A copy of this Arrest Warrant shall be defivered to the defendant at the time of its execution, or as
soon thereafler as Is practicable 3
. Sworn to and subscribed before me ) -
RETURN WARRANT TO: on 5/2/2014 )
General Sessions ; Judge's Address 209 Short Street
125 W. Main Street 42% S p )il 1S) ) Kingstree, SC 29556-
i ° udge Judge's Teteph X
I?nngsﬂee, SC 29556 Delores Franidin Wilkiams ) udge's Tetephane  (843)355-9565 x x277
Judge Code: 5992 ) Issuing Court: Maglstrate D Municipal D Cireuit
ORIGINAL ORIGINAL ORIGINAL ORIGINAL ORIGINAL ORIGINAL ORIGINAL
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